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Damijan Zorko             
(Managing Director)

Benjamin Bambič
(Chief Financial Officer)

Achim Christian Fetzer
(Director)

1.1.	Management Statement

The Management confirmed the financial statements for the year 2023 ended 31 December 
2023, the used accounting policies and notes to the financial statements. 

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the annual report in such a way that it 
represents a true and fair view of the company's assets and operating results for 2023.

The Management confirms that the appropriate Accounting Policies have been consistently 
employed and that the accounting appraisals have been prepared with care and due diligence. 
The Management also confirms that the  financial balance statements, together with notes, 
have been prepared on the basis of the assumption that the company will continue to operate, 
and in accordance with applicable legislation and with Slovenian Accounting Standards.

The Management is also responsible for the appropriately managed accounting, for taking 
appropriate measures to protect assets, and for preventing and detecting fraud and other ir-
regularities.

The Tax Authorities may, at any time within a period of 5 years after the end of the year for 
which a tax assessment was due, carry out an audit of the company’s operations, which may 
lead to the assessment of additional tax liabilities, default interest, and penalties with regards to 
corporate income tax or other taxes and duties. The company's Management is not aware of 
any circumstances that could lead to significant liability under this heading

Ljubljana, 19/07/2024
 		

1.  Business 
     Report
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1.2.	CEO’s Report

Dear colleagues and business partners,

The year 2023 is behind us. We have faced economic situations that have put us to a serious test. Unpredictable eco-
nomics and socio-political developments have presented us with challenge after challenge. For us, these were the 
moments when our true strength and ability to survive was revealed. With confidence in the abilities of our colleagues, 
mutual support and willingness to change, we have turned our business trajectory in the right direction.

Our business practice is one of innovative solutions, market adaptation, and a well-thought-out approach.
We have improved our sales strategy, increased our marketing activities, and found new markets. We have taken our 
service to the next level. We have improved operational efficiency, invested in technology that improves productivity 
and reduces costs.

We have been heavily involved in education and training because we know that continuous learning and upskilling are 
key to personal and professional development. Every new thing learned enriches the individual and the organisation.
Our success is not only measured in numbers, but also in trusting partnerships. We are constantly looking for new tren-
ds and technologies to ensure that our services meet the highest standards of quality.

We are the ones committed to sustainable development and social responsibility. We are an active partner, helping 
to make this principle a reality for ourselves and others. This is why it is essential to invest in environmentally friendly 
processes, support local initiatives, and promote ethical business practices.

Through hard work, innovation and dedication, we have been able to consolidate our position in the market and realise 
projects.

It is important to remain proactive, flexible, and focused on long-term goals. Together, we are ready to take on any 
challenge and turn it into an opportunity for growth and improvement.

Damijan Zorko             
Managing Director

1.1.	Management Statement
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1.3. Business highlights in 2023 

2023 2022 2021
Index 

2023/2022

operating revenue 174,795,382 216,191,908 188,496,241 81

operating profit/EBIT 1,701,972 6,268,130 8,944,460 27

EBITDA1 6,208,138 10,396,747 13,325,455 60

total profit and loss 1,807,238 7,226,734 8,629,249 25

net profit/loss 1,678,533 6,363,722 7,334,234 26

employees on the last day of the year 385 385 356 100

revenue profitability (%)2 1.03 3.34 4.58 31

cost-effectiveness3 1.01 1.03 1.05 98

net profit per employee 4,360 16,529 20,602 26

total assets of the Company 90,119,586 83,984,247 91,923,406 107

capital 54,679,311 53,069,363 53,675,012 103

EBIT as a percentage of turnover (%) 1.0 2.9 4.8 34

EBITDA margin (%)4 3.6 4.8 7.1 74

net debt5 0.19 0.12 0.25 153

ROE6 3.07 11.99 13.66 26

of capital coverage of fixed assets7 1.37 1.32 1.40 104

level of ownership of the financing8 0.61 0.63 0.58 96

¹ EBITDA = EBIT + write-offs

  EBIT = operating revenues - operating expenses

² profitability on revenue = total operating profit/operating revenue

³ operating economy = operating income/operating expenditure

⁴ EBITDA MARGIN = EBITDA/operating income

⁵ net debt to capital = (short-term and long-term financial liabilities - cash)/capital

⁶ ROE = net profit/capital

⁷ capital adequacy of fixed assets = capital/fixed assets

⁸ funding equity ratio = capital/liabilities to sources of funds
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Dinos was founded in 1946 under the then 
name Odpad and was established as a state 
company to collect waste for further use. 

In 2013, a strategic capital tie-up took place 
with Scholz Holding, one of the largest 
waste collection and processing companies 
in Europe. 

The new millennium ushered in a period 
of intensive investment in the technologi-
cal modernisation of warehouses, as some 
warehouses did not meet environmental 
requirements. 

The year 2016 brought radical changes in the 
ownership and management structure of 
the Scholz Group with the entry of the new 
owner Chiho-Tiande Group, abbreviated as 
CTG, which went through acquisition proce-
dures until the end of the year. 

CTG was renamed Chiho Environmental 
Group Ltd, CEG for short, in 2017.

In December 2018, Scholz International 
Holding GmbH, part of the CEG Group, took 
100% ownership of Dinos.

The following is the ownership structure 
(beneficial owners according to ZPPDFT) in 
force as of 31/12/2018.

Owners Percentage of 
capital share

Scholz International 
Holding Gmbh 100.00%

The largest beneficial owner of Chiho Envi-
ronmental Group is Mr. Tu Jianhua.

1.4. Presentation of the history of Dinos d.o.o.
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In accordance with Article 70 of the Compa-
nies ZGD1-I, Dinos declares that it complies 
with the applicable legislation, regulations, 
other legal and regulatory acts, and internal 
rules and instructions in the conduct of its 
business. The Company applies the “Code 
of Corporate Governance for Non-Public 
Companies” (hereinafter the Code), which is 
available on the website of the Association 
of Supervisors of Slovenia (Corporate gov-
ernance code for non-public companies | 
Slovenian Directors’ Association (zdruzen-
je-ns.si) 

Dinos d.o.o. is managed by its Manage-
ment for the benefit of the Company, in-
dependently and at its own risk. The Man-
agement is appointed by the owner in 
accordance with the Company’s articles of 
association. The work of the Management is 
carried out in accordance with the applica-
ble legislation and the articles of association 
of the Company. The management of Dinos 
d.o.o. is represented by:

•	 General Manager Damijan Zorko,
•	 Chief Financial Officer Benjamin Bambič,
•	 Director Achim Christian Fetzer 

The directors of Dinos d.o.o. declare that 
the annual report of Dinos d.o.o. for the year 
2023, including the Management Statement, 
has been drawn up and published in accord-
ance with the provisions of the Companies 

Act ZGD-1, the applicable accounting stand-
ards, and the by-laws adopted on the basis 
of these standards.

Control is exercised by the sole owner of 
the Company together with the Company’s 
Management.

The sole shareholder of Dinos d.o.o. is: 
•	 Scholz International Holding GmbH,

who holds the highest decision-making po-
sition in the Company.

The powers and duties of the owner and 
the Management of the Company were set 
out in the Company’s articles of association 
(hereinafter referred to as the Articles of As-
sociation), which is publicly available on the 
website of AJPES in the Business Register of 
Slovenia – Public database of all business 
entities established in the territory of the Re-
public of Slovenia (www.ajpes.si). 

The internal control systems and 
risk management in the Company 
in relation to the financial reporting 
procedure

The Management of the Company protects 
the company’s assets by ensuring:
•	 keeping adequate accounting records on 

a unified accounting and management 
information system,

•	 establishing and ensuring the 
functioning of internal control,

•	 establishing and ensuring the 
functioning of internal accounting 
controls; and

•	 choosing and applying accounting 
policies.

The internal control system works to:
•	 ensure the accuracy, reliability, and 

completeness of accounting records,
•	 the truth and fairness of financial 

reporting,
•	 compliance with legislation and other 

regulation; and
•	 efficiency and effectiveness of 

operations.

The Management of the Company aims to 
provide a control system that is the most ef-
fective in intercepting negative events and 
at the same time cost- and organisationally 
optimal. The Company’s management is 

committed to continuously reviewing the 
system of controls, recognising the limita-
tions of any system of controls, to provide 
timely warnings, and to provide assurance 
that the purpose of the controls is being 
achieved.

The Management believes that the current 
system of internal controls ensures that the 
Company operates effectively and efficiently 
in accordance with legal provisions, thereby 
ensuring fair and transparent reporting in all 
material respects.

Diversity in employment

Dinos d.o.o. strives to pursue a diversity pol-
icy in employment, such as ensuring equal 
opportunities and equal treatment, for all 
employees, regardless of their personal cir-
cumstances. The company does not have a 
special diversity policy adopted in connec-
tion with representation in the manage-
ment and supervisory bodies as well as crite-
ria with regard to gender, age, or education.

1.5.	Statement on the management of the company 
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1.5.1.  Company management

The sole shareholder in the resolution of 
25/05/2023 took note of the profit and loss for 
2022 and the audited annual report for 2022, 
which was audited by the auditing company Ernst 
and Young d.o.o. as of 23/05/2023.

The resolution establishes a balance sheet profit as 
at 31/12/2022 of EUR 27,449,906.85, of which EUR 
21,086,184.40 represents the net profit carried for-
ward from previous years and EUR 6,363,722.45 is 
the net profit for the financial year 2022.

In a resolution dated 22/06/2023, the sole share-
holder gives instructions and approval for a short-
term loan of EUR 2 million to a related company in 
the Scholz Group. 

In a resolution of 11/09/2023, the partner con-
firmed the note and approved the extension of 
the revolving credit facility with the bank for a fur-
ther two years for an amount of EUR 5 million.

By the resolution of 04/01/2024, the Company 
was granted approval to establish a company with 
the status of a limited liability company in the ter-
ritory of Croatia, with a share capital of EUR 2,500. 
On the same date, it was granted permission to 
join the sales consortium for the sale of the own-
ership stake in Štore Steel d.o.o.

On 30/01/2024, the Company was instructed to 
grant a short-term loan to a Scholz Group compa-
ny in the amount of EUR 2 million.

Explanations concerning the provisions of the Code which Dinos d.o.o. does 
not fully comply with:

The Company follows the Governance Code as recommended at the basic level of corporate 
governance.

Section  2.1.1. Dinos d.o.o. does not have any objectives in its Articles of Association. The Ma-
nagement of the Company acts in accordance with the objective defined by 
the Code, i.e. maximising the value of the Company. 

Section  2.4. The Articles of Association of Dinos d.o.o., which is publicly available on the 
website of AJPES in the Business Register of Slovenia – Public database of all 
business entities established in the territory of the Republic of Slovenia (www.
ajpes.si).

Section  2.5.3. The members of the supervisory body are the sole shareholder.

Section  2.5.4. The statement of independence is not signed. Both the Management and the 
controlling function of the Company avoid any conflict of interest and act in 
the spirit of good stewardship.

Section  4.3.2. There is no independent expert in the supervisory body who is not related to 
the Company or a shareholder.

Section  5.1.1. The supervisory body meets as necessary, possibly less frequently than forese-
en in the Code.

The members of the management body have a duty to the Company to act responsibly, pro-
fessionally, with the care of a good businessman, diligently in the performance of their duties, 
and to continuously apply the knowledge necessary for the performance of their present and 
future work.

Ljubljana, 19/07/ 2024

Damijan Zorko             
(General Manager) 

Achim Christian Fetzer
(Director)

Benjamin Bambič
(Chief Financial Officer) 
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1.6.	Vision, mission, strategy and development 

The vision reflects the desired future image of the organisation, its achievements, and 
its position in relation to influential actors, as well as the mission, which summarises the 
philosophy and purpose of the Company's existence in a concise form.

Vision:
“To remain a leader in waste collection 
and treatment, using state-of-the-art 
technologies and working in synergy with 
all those involved in the process to ensure 
environmental protection and sustainable 
development.”

Mission:
“Through our ecologically-oriented and 
socially responsible actions, we help to 
preserve nature in Slovenia and the wider 
European region. Our mission is to collect 
and process waste into commercially 
interesting and high-quality secondary raw 
materials for our customers. This allows 
us to invest heavily in new technological 
processes for waste collection and 
processing and to invest in the knowledge 
of our employees, which is our main 
competitive advantage, creating value 
for our owners and making the company 
attractive for business connections.”

Core values: 
•	 open-mindedness,
•	 team spirit,
•	 respect,
•	 goal-oriented,
•	 efficiency, and 
•	 commitment.

Our main objectives are:
•	 maintain and consolidate market 

leadership,
•	 achieve stable annual growth,
•	 maintain the Dinos brand as trustworthy 

and attractive for long-term alliances,
•	 increase automation and flexibility of 

production while reducing processing 
costs,

•	 building a lean organisational structure 
that can react and adapt quickly to 
changes in the market,

•	 investing in the knowledge and expertise 
of staff at all levels,

•	 introduce activities and processes that 
avoid or reduce environmental impacts, 

•	 remain an ecologically and 
environmentally conscious company and 
a reliable, trustworthy business partner.



12Annual Report 2023    Dinos d.o.o. Ljubljana

1.7.  Quality and environmental policy of Dinos d.o.o.

The Company's core orientation is to run its business according to good stewardship, using 
systemic tools such as awareness of the environmental impacts of the Company's activities, 
focus on domestic and foreign markets, and achieving goals with the aim of strengthening the 
stability of the Company on the basis of profit generation.

The primary objective of each business unit is to perform the activities of collection, treatment, 
brokering, transport, and marketing of waste in a quality manner, with the aim of achieving 
better business results than competing companies in the field of waste and related materials 
management and a demonstrable reduction of environmental risks.

The Company, through the mechanisms described in the OPr (process description), OPos (pro-
cedure descriptions), and ND (work instruction), implements and meets the requirements of 
the quality and environmental management system according to the principle of

The Management and employees are committed to continuously improving the quality of 
work and the end product by introducing new technologies for the collection, sorting, pro-
cessing, and disposal of waste materials and adapting to new conditions. The Company is in a 
constant search for new solutions and improvements with the aim of reducing environ-
mental pollution, increasing recycling and recovery rates, and consequently aiming 
at a strong reduction of quantities to be disposed of. Our policies have a major impact 
on the life cycle of products, extending it and at the same time conserving natural 
resources.

The targets set in the annual plans are re-
viewed and revised by the Company's Man-
agement at periodic meetings and, based 
on the findings, the targets and plans are set 
and adjusted to reflect the current situation. 
The plans and objectives include pro-
grammes to improve the environmental 
management system and to put in place 
processes to prevent pollution and caus-
ing adverse environmental impacts.

The basis for successful work is collaboration, 
communication at the same levels and be-
tween the different organisational levels 
of the Dinos structure, as well as collabora-
tion and communication between manage-
ment and other levels of the organisation 
and stakeholders.

We operate in a way that satisfies the own-
er and the employees, and we work to-
gether with the immediate surroundings 
in which activity is carried out. We raise 
awareness among our employees about 
how to carry out activities that are 
environmentally friendly.

The Company's Management provides the 
necessary conditions for the implementa-
tion and achievement of quality and envi-
ronmental objectives atmanagement level 
through continuous education, training of 
employees at all organisational levels, and 

verification of the quality and environmen-
tal management system through manage-
ment reviews and audits.

The Company's management ensures that 
the company operates on the basis of legal 
and industry regulations, in particular in the 
areas of waste management and environ-
mental management, which are necessary 
for legal, efficient, and environmentally 
friendly operations. The Company complies 
with and implements the requirements of 
applicable legislation and adapts to interna-
tional regulations necessary for it to operate 
in a quality and environmentally sound 
manner.

The Company's Environmental Quality Pol-
icy is made available to all employees by 
posting it on billboards, on the website and 
in the Quality Management Procedures. The 
Company's Management communicates 
the quality and environmental policy to em-
ployees so that they understand and apply it 
in their areas of activity.

The quality and environmental objectives 
support the quality and environmental 
management policy and are set out in the 
annual business plan.

plan do check act
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1.7.1.  Main activities of the company in relation to the quality policy 

The main activity of DINOS d.o.o. is the col-
lection and pre-treatment of waste in order 
to ensure the highest possible recycling rate 
of this waste back into usable raw materials. 
The Company operates with the following 
purpose: giving waste materials back to in-
dustry. The Company is able to do this be-
cause it has its own warehouses for waste 
collection spread across Slovenia, as well as 
four Waste treatment centres in Ljubljana, 
Celje, Maribor and Naklo. For all its active 
sites, of which there are 18, it has also ob-
tained the relevant administrative acts, such 
as building and use permits, a certificate of 
registration in the register of collectors, and 
environmental permits. 

With such an organisation, with the appro-
priate technical equipment, with technical-
ly qualified and professionally suitable staff, 
and with the appropriate business links with 
other waste management companies, Di-
nos d.o.o. is able to provide a global waste 
management service for manufacturing 
companies, where different types of waste 
are generated in different manufacturing 
companies. 

Dinos d.o.o. has a documented, operationally 
implemented, and maintained quality and en-
vironmental management system in place for 
many years, with constant improvements at 
the level of sectors and processing centres. It is 
certified according to the ISO 9001:2015 qual-
ity management system and ISO 14001:2015 
environmental management system.

The management of the quality and envi-
ronmental management system, according 
to Dinos’ organisational chart, involves the 
Company’s Management, which organises 
and manages both systems, monitors them 
and takes action if, on the basis of analyses of 
process indicators, it identifies non-conform-
ities or deviations from the set objectives. In 
doing so, Management takes into account 
the context of the organisation, identified 
risks and opportunities, past analyses, com-
pliance assessments as objectives are set on 
the basis of SWOT analyses.

The Company’s core orientation is to run its 
business according to good stewardship, us-
ing systemic tools such as awareness of the 
environmental impacts of the Company’s 

activities, focus on domestic and foreign 
markets, and achieving goals with the aim of 
strengthening the stability of the Company 
on the basis of profit generation. The primary 
objective of each business unit is to perform 
the activities of the Company in a quality 
manner, striving to achieve ever better busi-
ness results, while keeping in mind that we 
must and can do so in a way that minimis-
es risks to the environment. The Company, 
through the mechanisms described in the 
OPr (process description), OPos (procedure 
descriptions), and ND (work instruction), im-
plements and meets the requirements of 
the quality and environmental management 
system according to the principle of “plan – 
do – check – fix”.

Dinos d.o.o. ensures that it operates on the 
basis of statutory and sectoral regulations, 
with a priority on environmental protection 
regulations, which are necessary for a legal, 
successful, and environmentally-oriented 
business. The Company complies with and 
implements the requirements of applicable 
legislation and adapts to international regu-
lations necessary for it to operate in a quality 
and environmentally sound manner.

Management

Environmental risks and fire and emergency 
risks are managed through ISO 14001:2015. 
In accordance with the applicable occu-
pational health and safety and fire safety 
systems as well as legislation, we carry out 
assessments of environmental aspects and 
impacts, fire risks and workplace hazards.

We continuously educate our employees on 
health and safety at work, and we produce 
instructions, warning signs, and signs to 
manage therisks as far as possible.

plan do check fix
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LJUBLJANA REGION

CP Ljubljana CP Naklo, Kranj, 
Jesenice

Nova Gorica, Koper

1.8.  Organisation and human resources policy

Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company of 
03/12/2018, the Company is managed by a three-member Board of Directors, 
composed as follows:

•	 Damijan Zorko  - Managing Director
•	 Benjamin Bambič – Chief Financial Officer
•	 Fetzer Achim Christian – Director

The Company's work processes operate in seven sectors:

Management

Commercial 
sector

Financial
sector

HR 
legal 

sector

Regional sector
Sector for
ecology

Sector 
for technology

in
maintenance

General 
sector

The company operates from 18 units across Slovenia, organised into four regions: 

CELJE REGION

CP Celje Velenje Slovenske Konjice Trbovlje

MARIBOR REGION

CP Maribor Murska 
Sobota

Lendava Ptuj Dravograd

NOVO MESTO REGION

Novo mesto Kočevje Brežice
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Personnel policy 

At the end of 2023, the company employed 
385 people, of whom 370 were permanent 
and 15 temporaries.

As at 31/12/2023, the company employed 
116 women and 269 men.

Employee structure by gender

70%

 female	  male

30%

Agency work, and casual and tem-
porary work for pensioners

In the face of increased staffing risks, the Com-
pany has resorted to alternative recruitment 
solutions, both through the use of agency 
workers and the occasional work of retirees.

As of 31/12/2023, the Company as a user had 
1 transferred employee and 7 retired em-
ployees were included in the work process 
in accordance with the provisions of Articles 
27a to 27g of the Labour Market Regulation 
Act (Official Gazette of the Republic of Slo-
venia, No. 80/2010, as amended and supple-
mented).

People with disabilities  

The Company fully complies with the con-
tent of the legal provisions of the Vocational 
Rehabilitation and Employment of People 
with Disabilities Act (Article 62) and the provi-
sions of the Regulation on the Establishment 
of a Quota for the Employment of Persons 
with Disabilities (Article 6; Official Gazette of 
the Republic of Slovenia, No. 21/2014), which 
stipulate the obligation to employ persons 
with disabilities (quota) for all employers 
who employ more than 20 employees. 

Due to the lack of employees with disabilities, 
the Company had to pay EUR 62,634.75 to the 
state budget of the Republic of Slovenia in 2023.

As of 31/12/2023, the company employed 14 
people with disabilities.
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Employees Age structure: 

The average salary per employee in 2023 was EUR 1,869.64 gross, an increase of 0.6% compa-
red to EUR 1,857.73 gross in 2022.

The average number of employees based on hours worked in the 2023 accounting period is 
367.89 and 357.64 in 2022.
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Responsibility towards employees

In a period of increased risk in human resource management, we are most responsible for rec-
ognising that employees are the Company's core capital, and therefore the Company's priority 
is to invest in human resources development.

We have upgraded the organisational climate and thus successfully followed the basic guide-
lines for recruitment below, because only competent and satisfied employees will strive to 
make all processes work better and thus ensure added value and competitiveness of the Com-
pany. 

 

Education, training, and human resource development

We want to encourage employees to acquire new knowledge, skills and competences, all with 
a view to developing their new potential. 

Employees attended various training courses to acquire new skills and learn about good prac-
tices. This approach has also ensured internal knowledge transfer, whereby we have passed on 
new knowledge to a wider circle of colleagues through internal lectures.

New employees are successfully integrated into the business processes through an onboard-
ing programme, which introduces new employees to the Company's specific working environ-
ment in a systematic way.

keep your 
employees 
interested

keep your 
employees 
enthusiastic

keep your 
employees 

engaged

keep your 
employees 

informed
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Activities in the field of human re-
source training and development 

Knowledge is the foundation for deci-
sion-making, problem-solving, and the 
hatchery of new ideas.

In the area of education and training, we are 
working towards the goal of encouraging 
our colleagues to take a continuous and ac-
tive approach to education.

We want our employees’ development to be 
based on career progression and personal 
satisfaction, and a supportive environment 
for management and colleagues. We tailor 
our training programmes to the career goals 
of our employees.

We recognise that on-the-job education 
and training is a necessity that enables us to:
•	 acquire new skills and knowledge, 

improving efficiency and productivity.
•	 monitor changes in technology, industry 

and the business environment, which 
require constant updating of skills to 
remain competitive.

•	 provide job security, as colleagues who 
receive regular training and development 
are more flexible and have more career 
progression opportunities. 

•	 be motivated, which means more 
engagement and more satisfaction.

•	 encourage creativity and innovation, 
leading to new business approaches.

We identify skills needed through a compe-
tency framework for all job areas. 

Competences are the starting point for the 
selection design and evaluation of training 
programmes and upskilling. 

We provide our employees with continuous 
training in a wide range of professional ar-
eas, such as management, quality, the use 
of modern information technologies, and 
personal development. We promote lifelong 
learning for successful work, career progres-
sion, and professional and personal devel-
opment. Education and training are planned 
and systematic.

The Dinos Academy ensures the success-
ful implementation of the Dinos strategy, 
and we also train internal trainers to trans-
fer good practices. It supports employees 
and managers through regular training and 
coaching sessions, and individually in the 
field. We complement traditional education 
with online learning and assessment.

In 2023, we focussed on training in the are-
as of marketing, management, ecology, and 
human resources. 3,662 hours of education 
and training (2022: 2,270 hours) were deliv-
ered.

Training content in hours delivered

education and training 
provided for by law

education and training 
to acquire competences

    2022              2023

10000 2000 3000

1184 1387

1086 2275

Training providers in hours delivered

Education and training 
with in-house lecturers

Education and training 
with external providers

    2022              2023

10000 2000 3000

400 1051

1870 2611

The content of these programmes is complemented by visits to environmental conferences 
and the participation in international conferences and trade fairs.
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Special development for young 
talent

We place special emphasis on working with 
students, who bring fresh knowledge and 
skills to the Company. We work well with 
secondary schools to provide internships, 
and occasionally provide student work and 
scholarships. This concept also fosters inter-
generational cooperation – the experience 
of older employees and the vision of de-
veloping the younger generation allow the 
Company to gain added value and prevent 
increasing HR risks. 

Employee benefits 

Employees can voluntarily join the supple-
mentary pension insurance (subject to hav-
ing been employed by the Company for at 
least 12 months), for which the company has 
partnered with the insurance company Tri-
glav.

Children of Dinos, d.o.o. employees have the 
priority of doing holiday work with the Com-
pany, and the Company provides parents of 
children who are finishing primary school 
with the possibility of taking an extraordi-
nary leave of absence from work on the oc-
casion of the school information day, with a 
salary allowance. 

Both formal and informal staff get-togethers 
are an important indicator of a good organ-
isational climate. In addition to the tradition-

al New Year's Eve party, staff members also 
took part in enjoyable gatherings outside 
working hours. 

Each year, through employee nominations, 
we recognise colleagues who, through their 
behaviour, skills and way of working, em-
body the Company as a whole.

Trade union activity

Cooperation between the representative 
trade union and Management is based on 
an open dialogue of communication and 
respect for both trade union principles and 
the Company's business vision.

Communications

The Management ensures open commu-
nication with employees, as this is the only 
way to ensure a credible flow of information 
between all stakeholders.

We want managers to conduct annual staff 
interviews because we believe they are a 
fundamental tool for the management and 
employee development. Only in this way, 
can we strengthen the understanding be-
tween the Company's objectives, the devel-
opment of individuals, and the daily work in 
a systematic way.

Risks for safe and healthy work

Safety is our number one priority. Safer and 
healthier workplaces and the well-being of 
employees contribute to the economic effi-
ciency of the economy, the general well-be-
ing of society, and the sustainability of social 
budgets. Effectively ensuring occupational 
safety and health free from accidents, occu-
pational diseases, and work-related illnesses 
is therefore a national and workers' interest 
and an obligation for employers. Our goal is 
a well-organised and well-established occu-
pational safety and health system at all levels, 
complemented by programmes to promote 
physical and mental health at work. Safe and 
healthy work contributes significantly to the 
success of a company and improves work 
performance. Poor working conditions can 
lead to undesirable consequences: work-re-
lated injuries, ill health, diseases, excessive 
stress, etc. A safe and healthy working envi-
ronment is one of the fundamental princi-
ples of Dinos d.o.o.'s operations.

The safety and health at work sector over-
sees the compliance of employees with the 
conditions for safe and healthy work, and the 
representative reports on findings relating to 
occupational safety and health and, in their 
work environment and on the basis of her 
experience, proposes the wisest approaches 
to remedy anomalies and deficiencies.

Employees can keep up-to-date with all the 
information on operations in the internal 
newsletter and in the safety and occupa-
tional health folder, which also contains all 

the legislation, internal regulations, and in-
structions for safe and healthy work.

Plans for 2024.

In the area of training in occupational safe-
ty and health, our theoretical and practi-
cal knowledge in occupational safety and 
health will be tested in 2024. Based on the 
risk assessment of the jobs, we will imple-
ment and internally train employees for 
cutter jobs. We also have annual checks of 
personal protective equipment coming up 
this year. We will continue to work hard to 
source quality PPE and work equipment that 
employees will be happy to wear or use.

In 2024, we will also assess the risks of 
BONE-MUSCLE DISEASE WHEN CARRYING 
LOADS MANUALLY. The Regulation on en-
suring the safety and health of workers when 
moving loads manually was published in the 
Official Journal of the Republic of Slovenia 
No. 84/2023 of 02/08/2023. This Regulation 
shall enter into force on the day fifteen fol-
lowing its publication in the Official Gazette 
of the Republic of Slovenia and shall begin 
on 1 August 2024. All employers are required 
to carry out a risk assessment based on the 
Regulation and using the manual handling 
risk assessment tool. With regard to the level 
of risk assessment identified, the Regulation 
clearly sets out the actions that employers 
must take to ensure the health and safety 
of workers. Where there is a high level of 
risk to health and safety, employers will be 
required to ensure the use of lifting and oth-
er aids. According to Article 6 of the Regula-
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tion, an employer will be required to assess 
the risk of bone-muscle diseases whenever 
it is referred for assessment by a screening 
test listed in Annex 2 to the Regulation or by 
a screening test of a comparable method. 
A key innovation introduced by the Regula-
tion is the recommended German Key Indi-
cator Method (KIM) for assessing the risk of 
bone-muscle diseases when carrying loads 
manually. 

The challenge for the future is to put it first 
and foremost in the minds of our employees 
that health is our greatest asset and the en-
ergy they have. 

Health promotion at work

Workplace health promotion is the system-
atic targeted activities and measures that 
an employer implements to maintain and 
improve physical and mental health. Appro-
priate measures to promote health at work: 

•	 improve the organisation of work and the 
working environment, 

•	 encourage employees to take an active 
part in health protection and promotion 
activities,

•	 enable healthy lifestyle choices; and 
•	 promote the personal development of 

employees.

The legal basis for occupational safety and 
health is the Occupational Safety and Health 
Act (ZVZD-1; Official Gazette of the RS, No. 

43/11; hereinafter: the Act). According to Arti-
cle 6 and Article 32 of the Act, the employer 
must plan and implement health promo-
tion at the workplace, provide the neces-
sary resources and a way of monitoring the 
implementation, which means that he/she 
implements certain activities and measures 
to maintain and improve the physical and 
mental health of employees. 

The field of occupational safety and health is 
defined by the principles, rules, and activities 
that enable an employee to carry out his or 
her work successfully and to the full extent 
of his or her potential and without harm to 
his or her health, from the first day of work 
until the end of his or her working life. The 
basic principles of the Occupational Safety 
and Health Act ZVZD-1 set out the obliga-
tions and responsibilities of employers to 
ensure the safety and health of employees 
in the workplace.

In implementing the occupational health 
and safety system, we aim to build on the 
legal requirements with additional activi-
ties aimed primarily at improving employee 
safety and consequently the efficiency of 
the work process. We stress the importance 
of preventive action of regular activities that 
allow the Company to have a comprehen-
sive overview of occupational health and 
safety as well as fire protection.

Fire safety risk

Fire safety is one of the most important 
safety issues. Good fire safety and fire safety 
management can be vital and should not be 
left to chance, so we regulate fire safety in 
line with the requirements of the legislation.

The fire protection system is governed by 
the Fire Protection Act and other by-laws 
and regulations.

Every employer is obliged under the Fire 
Protection Act to comply with the stipulated 
fire protection measures to prevent fires and 
to save people, property, animals, cultural 
heritage, and the environment.

FP plans for 2024

In 2024, we need to arrange new fire safety 
plans for all sites. 

Fire safety rules

The fire safety rules are the basic docu-
ment by which the owner of buildings or 
the occupier of premises (except for one- 
and two-apartment buildings) defines the 
organisation of fire safety. It defines the re-
sponsibilities and duties of responsible per-
sons, employees, and visitors, the preventive 
measures to be taken against fire, and the 
measures to be taken in the event of a fire. 

The fire safety rules shall be drawn up in ac-
cordance with the Fire Code Regulation(Of-
ficial Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia No. 
52/2007) and shall contain the following es-
sential elements:

•	 organising fire safety,
•	 fire safety measures,
•	 instructions on what to do in the event 

of a fire.

The fire safety rules must also contain the 
annexes to the fire safety rules and the re-
cords that must be kept on a regular basis 
(extract of the fire safety rules, instructions 
to individuals, fire plan (for certain build-
ings), evacuation plan (for certain buildings), 
record sheets for regular inspections and 
maintenance and servicing of equipment, 
fire protection appliances and other means 
of fire protection, employee fire training re-
cords, records of fires, explosions, fire-fight-
ing interventions and damage, and other 
checklists depending on the building).

The fire safety rules also stipulate that every 
building must have a person in charge (qual-
ified in fire safety) who is responsible for fire 
safety. The responsible person shall keep 
records and carry out an annual inspection 
of the building's condition with regard to fire 
safety.
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Dinos is aware of its economic, legal, and ethical responsibilities. In addition to the business 
performance of, we have a responsibility to society, and we need to demonstrate this in an 
appropriate way.

The main objectives of the marketing communication are to showcase Dinos' services, to rein-
force the brand awareness, and to confirm that Dinos is a trusted partner.

In our communication, we wanted to show that we can empathise and understand the needs 
of our colleagues, partners, owner, the local community, and the environment. All of these are 
our primary concern and commitment.

It can communicate this responsibility in public relations to its immediate or wider environ-
ment through a variety of messages

Employees 
stable employment, decent pay and a safe 
and pleasant working environment

Owners 
company growth and profitability

Business partners 
continuous orders and on-time payments

Local communities 
protecting the environment and developing 
the local environment

Environment 
caring for the environment 

We are multi-faceted with all our stakeholders, reaching out to our immediate and wider envi-
ronment through different messages and channels.

Personal advice on waste management, managing the documentation system related to 
waste management, integration into the packaging scheme. Our technical and commercial 
staff are always available for individual advice on the integrated management of waste mate-
rials.

Visits to kindergartens, schools, and colleges are invaluable for our company, as they allow 
us to show younger generations how to process waste materials into secondary raw materials 
and return them to production. We recognise that environmental awareness is a fundamental 
part of conservation education and Dinos is doing just that.

Printed leaflets are what we use to communicate directly with citizens and to present our 
services, such as waste material collection, confidential document destruction, and Dinos' car 
towing service for end-of-life vehicles. 

Sponsorships that are linked to the local environment of Dinos' sites allow us to connect with 
local communities.

Social networks play a primarily awareness-raising and educational role, where we want to 
bring the issues of environmental protection to the wider population.

Internal newsletters and meetings are where we inform employees about important com-
pany policies, news, business results, plans for the year, and other up-to-date information.

In today's world, ensuring social responsibility has become an obligation, and this concept is 
becoming an increasingly important element of every organisation's operation and an integral 
part of its policies.

Every start of a new financial year means redefining the role and position of Dinos in the wider 
and narrower environment and setting the tools to ensure that the goal is achieved.

1.9.	Marketing communication with social responsibility
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Dinos d.o.o. operates from 18 sites in Slo-
venia. For all these sites, it has obtained the 
relevant environmental permits for waste 
management as well as for emissions to air 
and water. New needs and/or opportunities 
for additional waste management activities 
are constantly opening up, and Dinos d.o.o. 
is therefore responsible for obtaining addi-
tional relevant certificates and permits. 

Dinos also continues to operate as the pack-
aging waste management company Dinos 
d.o.o., DROE.

In 2023, Dinos d.o.o. also obtained the status 
of Joint Plan Operator in the field of reducing 
the use of certain single-use plastic prod-
ucts, abbreviated as SUP products – the 
acronym SUP stands for Single Use Plas-
tics. With this step, Dinos d.o.o. has been 
able to offer its partners who are subject to 
extended producer responsibility in the field 
of packaging the possibility to regulate ex-
tended producer responsibility also in the 
field of SUP products. 

We continued our active involvement in the 
adoption of new environmental legislation 
in 2023, with the main objective of protect-
ing free economic initiative.

1.10.  Environmental aspects of the Company 

Each year, we draw up a measurement and 
monitoring plan for the current year, broken 
down as follows:
•	 to carry out noise measurements, 
•	 emissions in water,
•	 airborne emissions, 
•	 producing waste assessments and 

analyses of the waste produced.

In 2023, eight noise measurements were 
planned (2 in 2022; 7 in 2021) and the same 
number were carried out (2 in 2022; 7 in 2021). 

30 wastewater monitoring events were 
planned (2022: 29; 2021: 29), all of which were 
carried out (2022: 30; 2021: 31).

For 11 sites, an assessment of the airborne 
particulate matter emissions has been car-
ried out (2022 11; 2021 11).

Air emissions from small combustion plants 
were monitored with 6 measurements (6 in 
2022; 8 in 2021). 

No substation measurements were carried 
out in 2023 and 2022 (2020: 1).

4 waste assessments were carried out (4 in 
2022; 3 in 2021). In 2023, 5 hazardous waste as-
sessments were carried out (2022: 2; 2021: 2). 

No other measurements were made in 2023.

2023 2022 2021

 planned  implemented planned  implemented planned  implemented
Noise measurement 8 8 2 2 7 7

Emissions into water 30 30 29 30 29 31

Particulate air emissions  (dust particles) - 11 - 11 - 11

Air emissions from small combustion plants - 6 - 6 - 8

Measurement of the transformer station - - - - - 1

Waste assessment - 4 - 4 - 3

Making an assessment of the waste for hazardous 

properties

- 5 - 2 - 2

Performance assessment of a biological wastewater 

treatment plant

- - - - - -

Measurement of emissions of substances into the air 

from the stack of an air treatment plant

- - - - - -

Monitoring

Measurement of emissions of substances into the air from the 
stack of an air treatment plant

Performance assessment of a biological wastewater treatment plant

Making an assessment of the waste for hazardous properties

Waste assessment

Transformer substation measurements

Air emissions from small combustion plants

Diffuse emissions of particulate matter into the air

Emissions in water

Noise measurement

   2023 implemented          2022 implemented          2021 implemented 352520151050 30

1.10.2.  Monitoring environmental impacts1.10.1. Ecology
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1.10.4.  Water consumption 

Dinos' water consumption is linked to do-
mestic water, vehicle washing, and ware-
house cleaning. At the Ljubljana site, water 
is also used for washing in the granulation 
process, but it is circulated in a closed loop. 
According to the production process men-
tioned above, the highest water consump-
tion in 2023 is at the Ljubljana site (for the 
same reason the highest consumption in 
2022 is at the Ljubljana site), while it is also 
the largest site in the Company and has the 
largest number of employees.

Water consumption in m³

1.10.3.  Electricity Consumption 

Electricity is one of the major individual en-
vironmental costs of a business, but it varies 
greatly from location to location. Electricity 
consumption depends strongly on the type 
of appliances that a particular site contains. 
In 2023, the Ljubljana site remains the larg-
est consumer of electricity due to the plastic 
granulation line, followed by Naklo, where 
most of the waste is processed. Electricity 
consumption remains constant.

Naklo Ljubljana Celje Maribor Novo
mesto Kranj Koper Murska

Sobota Dravograd Jesenice Trbovlje - 
Neža Kočevje Ptuj Velenje Brežice Nova 

Gorica
Slovenske

Konjice Lendava Idrija
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0

Electricity consumption (kWh)

   2023                  2022                  2021

Ljubljana Naklo Celje Kočevje Jesenice Maribor Koper Slovenske
Konjice Kranj Novo

mesto Velenje Brežice Dravograd Murska
Sobota

Nova 
Gorica Lendava Trbovlje - 

Neža Ptuj
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1.10.5. Waste Acceptance and management in 2023

The amount of recovered waste by statisti-
cal regions was 1.40% higher in 2023 com-
pared to 2022 (8.39% lower in 2022/2021). 
Only three regions saw an increase in take-
up: Central Slovenia, Savinjska and Goriš-
ka regions, with the largest increase in the 
Savinjska region (29.41%). A decrease in the 
volumes taken up was recorded in the re-
maining eight regions, with the largest de-
creases in the Podravska and Gorenjska re-
gions by 14.06%, and in the Pomurska region 
by 10.39%. By region, the amount of waste 
collected in 2023 compared to 2022 and 
2021 was as follows:
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Waste acceptance and management in 2023
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Business and operational risks

RISK DESCRIPTION OF THE RISK METHOD OF MANAGEMENT EXPOSURE

Operating risk

Purchasing risk
Volatility of raw material prices, inadequacy of inputs, 
unreliability of services

Multi-supplier policy, long-term cooperation, minimum 
inventories, price protection 

Moderate

Sales risks
Volatility of raw material prices, competition, 
bargaining power of the buyer

Finding new sales opportunities, expanding into global markets, 
protecting selling prices, hedging

Moderate

Environmental risks
Risk of emergencies, improper handling of hazardous 
substances

Regular preventive performance reviews, improvements, 
employee training 

Moderate

Human resources
Replaceability of key employees, professional 
qualifications, social dialogue with employees

Systematic human resources work, staff development, regular 
education and training

Moderate

Risks related to health and safety at work Work-related injuries, unplanned long absences Identified in the Risk Assessment and Risk Statement Moderate

Fire safety risk Fire risk
A site-specific fire safety rules, as defined by the Fire Risk 
Assessment

Moderate

Financial risks

Solvency (liquidity) risk
A reduction in liquid assets to cover operating and 
financial liabilities

Control of coordinated maturity of currencies, revolving credit Moderate

Credit risk Irregular inflows 
Active monitoring of the movement of receivables and payables, 
regular monitoring of credit ratings of customers and suppliers, 
collateralisation of receivables, collection of receivables

Moderate

Price and currency risk
Price volatility and EUR/USD exchange rate move-
ments

Price hedging with derivatives Moderate

Interest rate risk A sudden rise in the variable part of interest rates Borrowing in EUR, interest rates linked to EURIBOR Low

Information risk Information risk Information technology malfunctioning
Data archiving, regular upgrades and updates, regular 
maintenance

Moderate

Dinos d.o.o., like all business entities, faces 
risks and opportunities on a daily basis that 
can potentially have a negative or positive 
impact on the financial position and results 
of operations, business continuity, employe-
es, and the achievement of objectives and 
strategies. We are aware of the exposure 

to various internal and external risks which 
are a regular feature in business, therefore a 
comprehensive approach is required for an 
effective regular risk monitoring and mana-
gement. Risk management is thus embed-
ded in all areas of our operations.

In 2023, we identified the key risks in the 
Company and categorised them into three 
main groups of activities, namely business 
risk, financial risk, and information risk.

1.11.  Risk management at Dinos d.o.o.
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1.11.1. Business risks
Purchasing risk

Definition 
The industry in which the Company oper-
ates is exposed to the volatility of raw ma-
terial prices, which are subject exclusively to 
the laws of supply and demand. The level of 
risk is classified as moderate. 

Management
To the extent possible, an entity shall use 
appropriate risk mitigation instruments to 
reduce its exposure to volatility in commod-
ity markets. Procurement manages risk by 
managing a multi-supplier policy to limit de-
pendency on any one supplier and to build 
long-term stable relationships in a targeted 
way. The Company enters into contracts of 
different maturities to manage its purchas-
ing risks. 

We also try to follow a policy of minimum 
stockholding and rapid stock turnover. We 
operate globally with a constant search for 
alternative sources in European and former 
Yugoslav markets. Price volatility is managed 
by forward purchases as well as purchasing 
and selling prices at the stock exchange 
through the Scholz Group. Management 
considers that the exposure to procurement 
risks is moderate.

Sales risks

Definition
These are the risks associated with the likeli-
hood of successful sales of raw materials to 
the target market and price volatility. They 
relate to the growth in the power of com-
petitors, the bargaining power of buyers, 
and the overwhelming dependence on a 
particular market or buyer. The level of risk is 
classified as moderate. 

Management
We have been able to establish new sales 
channels, which allows us to spread the risk 
of exposure to a particular customer or re-
gion. This gives Dinos more flexibility to tar-
get its sales to price movements in different 
markets. We also benefit from synergies with 
our strategic partner in the Scholz Group to 
ensure consistency of supply.

Environmental risks, Risks Relating 
to Health and safety at Work and 
Fire Safety Risks 

Environmental risks

Definition
Given the fact that Dinos d.o.o. has 18 sites in 
2023, we have environmental, occupational 
health and safety, and fire safety risks identi-
fied on a site-by-site basis. We are aware that 
the implementation of the Company's activ-
ities may have negative impacts on all seg-
ments of the environment, either due to the 

implementation of the activities themselves 
or due to environmental or other disasters 
(fire, floods, wind emergencies, etc.). Howev-
er, the very activity of the Company can also 
have negative impacts on human health. 
The level of risk is classified as moderate.

Management
Environmental risks and fire and emergency 
risks are managed through ISO 14001:2015. 
In accordance with the applicable occu-
pational health and safety and fire safety 
systems as well as legislation, we carry out 
assessments of environmental aspects and 
impacts, fire risks and workplace hazards. 
We continuously educate our employees 
on health and safety at work, and we pro-
duce instructions, warning signs, and signs 
to manage the risks as far as possible. 

Risks Relating to Health and safety 
at Work 

We are committed to creating safe working 
conditions through responsible behaviour 
by everyone and will do everything we 
can to prevent workplace accidents. Over 
decades, we have been setting up mecha-
nisms and carrying out activities in this area. 
We recognise that occupational safety and 
health in the workplace and work environ-
ment, in addition to its primary purpose, also 
ensures employee satisfaction and loyalty. 
That's why we are working to reduce the 
level of risk arising from work processes and 
procedures.

The working environment is constantly 
changing due to developments and the 
introduction of new working practices, and 
successfully keeps pace with all these chang-
es. We are looking for affordable solutions 
that are healthier and safer for employees. 
All our sites are subject to a risk assessment 
and a safety statement, which is shared with 
all of our employees. In accordance with this 
document and the legal basis, inspections of 
the working environment, work equipment, 
periodic medical examinations of employ-
ees, and initial and periodic training of em-
ployees in occupational safety and health 
– theoretical and practical – are carried out. 
Staff members are identified to undertake 
first aid courses. 

The Company is also committed to provid-
ing additional training for employees on 
how to use specific work devices. We incor-
porate the latest developments in occupa-
tional health and safety into new processes 
and projects, and monitor the risks of acci-
dents and health risks. Risks are periodical-
ly assessed and kept at an acceptable level 
through safety measures. A priority in the 
development of occupational safety and 
health is reducing risks in exposed workplac-
es and integrating with other areas of safety, 
in particular fire protection, environmental 
protection, and chemical safety. In line with 
the legislation received, the Company has 
also prepared and adopted the required in-
ternal control policies.
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Fire safety risk

We recognise that fire safety is an important 
segment of a successful and safe operation 
of the Company. Fire safety is managed in 
accordance with the relevant legislation. The 
area is supported by a Fire Risk Assessment, 
the fire safety rules, and a Fire Safety Rules 
Extract for each site, which are communicat-
ed to employees.

We are also bound by the Regulation on the 

storage of combustible solid waste, on the basis 

of which we have started to draw up Declara-

tions on Construction and Technical Measures.

In accordance with these documents and 
legislation, periodic inspections of the fire 
protection situation are carried out, as well 
as the stipulated measurements of lightning 
installations, electrical installations, hydrant 
networks, fire detectors, security lighting, 
and fire extinguishers. Employees receive 
periodic training in fire prevention, fire drills, 
additional training in initial firefighting and 
safe evacuation, as well as fire watches.

1.11.2. Financial risks
We have identified four risks, namely: 
•	 Risk of financial solvency
•	 Credit risk
•	 Foreign-exchange risk
•	 Interest rate risk

Solvency (liquidity) risk

Definition
Solvency – liquidity risk comprises the risks 
associated with a shortfall in available finan-
cial resources and, as a consequence, the in-
ability of the Company to meet its financial 
and operational obligations within agreed 
time frames. The Management is responsi-
ble for managing solvency risk. The level of 
risk is classified as moderate. 

Management
The risk of short-term solvency is well man-
aged with efficient cash management, ad-
equate available credit lines for short-term 
cash flow management (revolving credit fa-
cility), a high level of financial flexibility, and 
good quality access to financial markets.

Long-term solvency is ensured by ensuring 
an appropriate financial balance between 
equity and debt capital and a sustainable 
ability to generate cash flows from opera-
tions, by improving the maturity structure of 
financial liabilities, and by having an appro-
priate capital structure. The risk is assessed as 
moderately managed.

Credit risk

Definition
Credit risk refers to the risk of a counterpar-
ty defaulting on its contractual obligations, 
which is reflected in operating and financing 
losses. The level of risk is classified as mod-
erate. 

Management
The Company has an active credit risk man-
agement policy, which includes ongoing 
monitoring of outstanding receivables, 
limiting exposure to individual customers 
through a system of limits, charging interest 
on overdue receivables, and a debt collec-
tion policy. 

We apply remote procedures to manage 
credit risk:

•	 Identification of significant claims and 
insurance of significant credit exposures 
through an insurance company,

•	 For the remaining clients, obtaining 
appropriate collateral (usually securities, 
mortgages, etc. for loans), and for buyers, 
defining limits (based on the buyer’s 
creditworthiness and estimated annual 
turnover),

•	 Client limits are checked at least once a 
year,

•	 Checking the creditworthiness of new 
and existing customers (at least once a 
year),

•	 In the rating department, obtaining 
collateral in the form of bank guarantees 
or letters of credit for customer 

receivables in high-risk classes, weekly 
monitoring of (non-)overdue receivables 
and expected repayments and recovery.

•	 The sale to the buyer is stopped when 
one of the following conditions is met: 
the limit is exceeded, the age of the 
outstanding receivables exceeds 90 
days, the buyer’s transaction account is 
blocked, or other external information 
indicates that the debtor is experiencing 
significant financial difficulties.

Price and currency risk

Definition
It is a risk if the Company sells and buys on a 
global market. The level of risk is classified as 
moderate.

Management
The exposure to the EUR/USD exchange rate 
risk arose from the expansion of the business 
into the global market and is also related to 
the increase of the group of which Dinos 
is a part. The Company hedges its foreign 
exchange risk by leasing foreign exchange 
through the Scholz Group. As at 31/12/2023, 
the Company has no foreign currency risk. 
It has no other assets and liabilities denomi-
nated in foreign currency. We engage in de-
rivative transactions primarily to hedge price 
and currency risks and not for speculative 
purposes.
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Interest rate risk

Definition
The process of deleveraging from banks 
continues, but the Company remains ex-
posed to the risk of rising money market 
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to 
interest rate risk is attributable to the varia-
ble portion of interest rates. The risk level is 
considered low. 

Management
All borrowings are denominated in the local 
currency EUR and bear interest linked to EU-
RIBOR. Interest rates remain low and are not 
expected to rise rapidly in the short term. 
The outstanding balance of borrowings is 
being reduced in line with repayment plans. 
Fixed interest rates as a risk-hedging instru-
ment for the protection against interest rate 
rises are currently much higher than expect-
ed. We use appropriate derivative financial 
instruments to manage major investments 
and the resulting long-term borrowing.

1.11.3.  Information risk 
Definition
Risks to the smooth operation of IT hard-
ware and software are associated with their 
smooth operation. The requirement is that 
they ensure uninterrupted operations. The 
current risks related to information technol-
ogy are the risks of hacking into the secure 
information system through various access-
es. The level of risk is classified as moderate. 

Management
The IT architecture is regularly maintained 
and upgraded, both centrally and at other 
sites. 

Operation has been stable, with no random 
outages or unplanned interruptions. The 
key activities implemented can be summa-
rised as follows:
•	 Increasing the security of uninterruptible 

power supply
•	 Increasing the communication capacity 

at key locations
•	 Upgrading the ERP system due to 

changes in legislation in the field of 
packaging

•	 We have upgraded our weighing system 
to manage logistics processes

•	 For production logistics, we have partially 
digitised data capture at processing sites 

•	 We set up a document management 
system and successfully integrated it with 
the ERP system

•	 Through regular adjustments, we have 
successfully protected the entire system 
against intrusions and other security risks

•	 The data protection system is regularly 
monitored and operates in accordance 
with current standards
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Dinos d.o.o. is expected to generate sales 
revenues of EUR 173 million in 2023, which 
is 80% of 2022. Operating income was im-
pacted by the fall in world stock market 
prices and, to a lesser extent, by lower sales 
volumes. 

Prices have had a consequent impact on the 
overall structure of the operating result, as 
on the other hand inflationary pressures and 
increases in energy prices have led to high-
er service and processing costs. All this was 
reflected in an EBIT of EUR 1.7 million, 73% 
lower than in 2022.

Among the financial items of the operating 
performance, the largest part of the financial 
expenses is represented by interest expens-
es of EUR 446 thousand, followed by realised 
derivative expenses of EUR 61 thousand and 
adjusted by unrealised ones from the end of 
2022 of EUR 53 thousand, their total impact 
on the 2023 result is EUR 8 thousand. They 

1.12.  Business analysis

1.12.1.  Operational performance in 2023 
  in EUR 2023/2022

 31/12/2023 31/12/2022 index

Total net sales revenue 173,042,187 215,795,334 80

Total other operating revenues 174,795,382 216,191,908 81

Total costs of goods, materials and services -155,294,858 -193,120,580 80

Total labour costs -12,431,200 -11,886,663 105

Write-offs -4,506,165 -4,128,617 109

a) thereof depreciation/amortisation -4,494,751 -4,114,589 109

Other operating expenses -861,186 -787,919 109

Total costs -173,093,410 -209,923,778 82

Operating profit/EBIT 1,701,972 6,268,130 27

Total financial revenue from loans 225,041 180,105 125

Total financial revenue 441,152 1,776,904 25

Total financial expenses for financial liabilities -446,086 -206,434 216

Total financial expenses -456,306 -984,633 46

Profit from regular operations 1,686,818 7,060,402 24

Total profit 1,807,238 7,226,734 25

Income tax -148,890 -858,434 17

Other taxes 20,185 -4,578 -441

Net profit/loss for the accounting period 1,678,533 6,363,722 26

are used as an economic hedge of price 
movements on the global market and are 
linked to the financial income generated by 
the use of derivatives, amounting to EUR 148 
thousand in 2023. There was no unrealised 
financial expense on derivatives at the end 
of 2023. The negative exchange differences 
were EUR 2 thousand.

During the year under review, the income 
received for accrued interest on loans 
granted to the Group increased, amount-
ing to EUR 225 thousand. Financial income 
also includes interest on overdue customer 
payments of EUR 66 thousand. The realised 
foreign exchange gains of EUR 38 thousand 
are adjusted by the unrealised ones at the 
end of 2022 of EUR 36 thousand for a total 
of EUR 2 thousand. There were no unrealised 
exchange differences at the end of 2023, 
nor any financial income from dividends re-
ceived. 
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Operating cost 2023 2022
index

2023/2022

Purchase value of sold goods and materials 131,199,849 167,172,012 78

Costs of materials 6,892,672 5,530,868 125

Cost of services 17,202,337 20,417,699 84

Labour costs 12,431,200 11,886,663 105

Write-offs 4,506,165 4,128,617 109

Other operating expenses 861,186 787,919 109

Total costs 173,093,410 209,923,778 82

Operating cost 

Operating costs in 2023 were EUR 173 milli-
on, 18% lower than in 2022. The biggest im-
pact on the cost level was the cost of goods 
sold, which was 22% lower than in 2022 due 
to lower inventory purchase prices. Conver-
sely, the cost of materials (energy and ma-
terials needed in the production process) 
increased by 25% compared to 2022 and 
amounted to EUR 6.9 million in 2023.

Cost of services is 16% lower compared to 
2022, due to lower volumes of materials for 
further processing, which have a negative 
resale value.

Labour costs in 2023 were EUR 12.4 million, 
an increase of EUR 0.544 million compared 
to 2022, an increase of 5%. The increase in 
the annual wage cost is due to salary incre-
ases in the lowest salary grades and the ad-
justment of other salary grades to maintain 
pay ratios.

Other operating expenses of EUR 0.861 mil-
lion are compared to EUR 0.787 million in 
2022 higher by 9%. In the structure of other 
operating costs, the largest part of EUR 0.476 
million is the cost of further management of 
waste generated after treatment, which we 
have taken over from the companies whe-
re we operate a global waste management 
service and which, on the other hand, is also 
reflected in the revenue from the service of 
taking over waste for further processing. 

The main reason for the increase is the 
higher landfill costs for production waste 
from the larger companies for which we 
provide global service.

Financing expenses 2023 2022
index

2023/2022

1. Interest expenses -431,303 -193,638 223

2. Financial expenses – exchange rate differences -2,414 -174,969 1

3. Expenses on other financial instruments in the Group -7,806 -603,229 1

4. Other financial expenses -14,784 -12,797 116

Total financial expenses -456,306 -984,633 46

Financing expenses 

The financial expenses in 2023 of EUR 0.456 
million are 54% lower than in 2022, when 
they amounted to EUR 0.985 million.

The main reasons for the decrease in finan-
cial expenses are lower exchange rate dif-
ferences, down 99%, and lower expenses 
on financial instruments, down 99%, both 
compared to 2022. 

Interest expenses of EUR 0.431m are up 123% 
compared to 2022, due to higher borrowing 
and higher interest rates.

Other financial expenses increased by 16% 
compared to 2022. 

There were no impairments of investments 
in 2023.
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1.12.2. Balance of Assets and Liabilities as at 31/12/2023 

  in EUR 2023/2022
 31/12/2023 31/12/2022 Index

ASSETS    
A. Non-current assets 45,502,413 42,907,890 106

I. Intangible assets and long-term deferred 
costs

155,907 157,857 99

II. Tangible fixed assets (Property, plant and 
equipment)

39,667,272 40,090,984 99

II. Long-term financial investments 5,521,572 2,521,572 219
IV. Deferred tax assets 157,663 137,478 115

B. Current assets 44,547,646 41,051,969 109
II. Inventories 11,779,548 10,892,880 108
III. Short-term financial investments 0 3,035,507 0
IV. Short-term trade receivables 31,444,562 25,831,160 122
V. Cash 1,323,536 1,292,422 102

C. Short-term deferred costs and accrued revenues 69,526 24,388 285
    

Total assets 90,119,586 83,984,247  
 31/12/2023 31/12/2022  

EQUITY AND LAIBILITIES    
A. Equity 54,679,311 53,069,363 103

I. Called-up capital 2,279,668 2,279,668 100
II. Capital reserves 9,740,278 9,740,278 100
III. Revenue reserves 13,530,308 13,530,308 100
IV. Reserves from valuation at fair value -9,252 69,202 -13
V. Net profit or loss brought forward 27,459,775 21,086,184 130
VI. Net profit or loss for the year 1,678,533 6,363,722 26

B. Provisions and long-term accrued costs and 
deferred revenues

916,858 781,733 117

C. Non–current liabilities 4,658,639 5,435,745 86
I. Non–current financial liabilities 4,658,639 5,435,745 86

Č. Current liabilities 27,778,465 21,886,792 127
I.  Current financial liabilities 6,841,904 2,306,188 297
II. Current operating liabilities 20,936,561 19,580,604 107

D. Short-term accrued costs and deferred revenues 2,086,313 2,810,613 74
    

Total equity and liabilities 90,119,586 83,984,247  

Non–Current Assets

The most important part of long-term assets 
is property, plant, and equipment of EUR 39.7 
million, made up of buildings of EUR 14.1 mil-
lion, land of EUR 8.2 million, and equipment 
of EUR 17.1 million. The impact on the chan-
ge in the value of property, plant, and equ-
ipment in 2023 is the capitalisation of new 
assets and depreciation. Other major items 
among long-term assets are a loan granted 
in 2023 of EUR 3m and financial investments 
of EUR 2.5m.

Current Assets

Short-term assets represent 49% of total as-
sets. The largest part of short-term assets is 
trade receivables from customers, the volu-
me of which depends on borrowings from 
suppliers and banking institutions.
At the end of 2023, short-term assets were 
EUR 44.5 million, and at the end of 2022, 
EUR 41.1 million or a 9% the increase due to 
higher valued inventories and trade receiva-
bles, both of which are attributable to price 
levels, increased year-end cash balances, and 
lower short-term financial investments. 

Liabilities

At the last day of the period under review, 
working capital¹ of Dinos d.o.o. amounted to 
EUR 21.6 million, an increase of 38% compa-
red to the end of 2022, when it stood at 15.6 
million.

Net indebtedness at the end of 2023 was 
EUR 10.2 million, up from EUR 6.4 million in 
2022 and increased by 58%.
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Equity

The capital of Dinos d.o.o. on the last day 
of 2023 was EUR 54.7 million, at the end of 
2022 it was EUR 53.1 million. The 3% capital 
increase in 2023 is affected by the result of 

the 2023 operations and the result of the 
2023 actuarial restatement of the provisions 
made for future jubilee and retirement be-
nefit payments.

 2023 2022 index 2023/2022

Equity 54,679,311 53,069,363 103

Net debt 10,177,007 6,449,511 158

Financial leverage ratio 15.69% 10.84% 145

Working capital 21,594,299 15,649,632 138

¹ Net current assets (working capital) = (operating receivables + inventories + cash + long-term deferred costs and accrued revenues - 
   current operating liabilities – Long-term accrued costs and deferred revenues)
² Net debt = (non-current and current financial liabilities - cash)
³ Financial leverage ratio = net debt / (equity + net debt)
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1.12.3.  Sales analysis by programme
 
Overview of revenue achieved by programme per plan and previous year:

SALES Value (in EUR)

PROGRAMME 2023 PLAN IND. 23/pl 2022 Ind. 23/22

Ferrous metals 79,739,900 111,664,681 71 98,251,831 81

Non-ferrous metals 71,636,394 97,071,472 74 88,707,646 81

Paper 7,270,449 14,443,220 50 14,009,021 52

Plastics 7,410,551 6,960,000 106 7,988,854 93

Glass 469,682 0 / 326,871 144

Wood 1,530,531 0 / 1,163,685 132

Other 4,984,679 434,738 1,147 5,347,426 93

Total 173,042,187 230,574,111 75 215,795,334 80

The cumulative figures for 2023 sales compared to 2022 and the sales plan show that the 
revenue achieved is 25% lower than planned and 20% lower than in 2022. 

   share of total revenue

Sales programme as a percentage of total revenue

Glass

Wood

Other

Plastics

Paper

Non-ferrous metals

Ferrous metals

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%25% 35% 45%5% 15%
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Overview of procurement realised, planned, and previous year:

Procurement Value (in EUR)

Programme 2023 Plan IND. 23/pl 2022 Ind. 23/22

Ferrous metals 67,289,927 90,036,939 75 98,251,831 68

Non-ferrous metals 61,363,940 88,925,479 69 88,707,646 69

Paper 2,459,169 9,191,140 27 14,009,021 18

Plastics 1,122,181 2,436,000 46 7,988,854 14

Glass 25,343 0 / 326,871 8

Wood 40,596 0 / 1,163,685 3

Other 17,820 1,636,778 1 5,347,426 0

Total 132,318,975 192,226,336 69 215,795,334 61

Procurement prices are 31% lower compared to plan and 39% lower compared to 2022, the 
main impact on the indicator is the lower level of procurement prices. 

1.12.3.1. Ferrous metallurgy Programme

In the first quarter of 2023, the exchange price level reached its highest point of the year at EUR 

357/tonne. Demand for scrap metals has been weak, reflecting low economic activity in the 
EU, high inflation, and rising interest rates. 

The rest of the year saw a slight and constant price decline, reflecting the limited activity 
and sales of final products of our customers. Towards the end of the year, there was a slight 
strengthening due to the increased activity of the Turkish market, which was indirectly refle-
cted in Central European prices. 

The forecast for 2024 is in anticipation of the same price trend as in 2023. There is a decrease 
in the amount of waste raw materials on the market due to the reduced volume of activity in 
the economy. The expected/projected/forecasted decrease in interest rate will bring about a 
possible increase in economic activity and thus a rise in the price of waste raw materials. 
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1.12.3.2. Non-ferrous metals programme
In 2023, we saw relatively weak demand from foundries for all types of non-ferrous metals. The 
only exception was secondary aluminium, which had strong demand almost throughout 2023.

Price volatility on the London non-ferrous metals exchange was extremely high, with a ne-
gative trend for most metals. This is certainly true for the two main metals we trade most, 
aluminium and copper. Despite the difficult market conditions, we have managed to set new 
records in the non-ferrous metals sector, both in sales and in the price difference achieved. 

Energy and capital prices remain high, and only a slow recovery in non-ferrous metals activity 
is expected in 2024. 
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1.12.3.3. Paper programme
The weak economic situation in the region and beyond, low consumption, high energy prices, 
and costly production in the paper industry mark 2023 as a year of lower economic activity and 
an extremely difficult year for the wastepaper market. Paper mills were further confronted with 
high stocks and reduced orders. As a result, their wastepaper needs were also lower. 

After 2022, when the PIX value for waste paperboard reached a record high of EUR 222 in July, 
PIX values in 2023 have fallen to the pre-crown price level of 2018–2019. The year 2023 started 
with a PIX value of EUR 70, which is 35% lower than the average PIX value since 2006. Then, with 
minor mid-year adjustments, the PIX rose slightly over the year, ending the year at below EUR 
102, 5% below the average value of the index from 2006 to the end of 2023. 

Due to high production costs, particularly the high price of electricity, which started to rise 
sharply already in the summer of 2022, and which only intensified in 2023, paper mills adjusted 
their paperboard purchase pricing policy in 2023 and, in addition to the already low PIX index, 
reduced the purchase prices by EUR 15 to 20/t compared to 2022. 

Low economic activity has also been reflected in lower volumes of wastepaper in our business. 
Those were 10% lower than the average of the last five years. The Confederation of European 
Paper Industries reported a 12.8% decrease in paper production. The low purchase prices for 
wastepaper have also resulted in a lower interest from citizens in collecting wastepaper, which 
is why the volumes of wastepaper purchased from this source have been the lowest in the last 
five years. 
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1.12.3.4. Plastics programme

The market for waste plastics declined sharply in the past year, 2023, after 2022, when we saw 

record price growth. Due to market saturation, demand has fluctuated widely. 

During the summer months, we experienced an almost complete halt in sales, which was 

accompanied by a steady decline in prices until the end of the year. 

As with waste plastics, prices for regenerates have fallen. This was due to a cooling of economic 

activity linked to high processing costs and relatively low prices for virgin raw materials. 

Recycling of plastic waste has moved to Asian countries, where it maintains lower processing 

costs to compete with European processors. 

In the second half of 2023, the logistics costs of shipping to third countries decreased. This has 

contributed to increased exports of waste foil to these countries, which in turn has meant high 

competition, higher purchase prices and, at the same time, a shortage of waste LDPE film.

Production capacity in the processing of waste LDPE plastic from which we extract granulate 

was fully utilised despite the challenges through 2023.

The fact that the price level of waste plastics and granulates has stabilised at a relatively low 

level has made it difficult to achieve satisfactory results. 

Environmental legislation in the European Union encourages the use of recycled inputs in the 

production of plastic products, which gives us hope for a renewed growth in demand and 

price levels for regenerates. 
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Changes in municipal foil 
prices 2022 - 2023
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 2022 hard pe plastics          2023 hard pe plastics
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1.13. Significant Events that Occurred After 
the End of the 2023 Financial year 

1.14. Plans for year 2024

In the future, we want to continue to follow 
the Company's stated objectives and optimi-
se our emissions by investing in equipment 
upgrades, thereby reducing our carbon fo-
otprint and introducing cleaner technology.

By monitoring production processes more 
closely, we aim to recover recycled raw ma-
terials more efficiently according to custo-
mer requirements and needs. Through our 
core activity in the economy, we help to re-
duce the need for primary raw materials and 
enable a faster reverse flow of secondary raw 
materials throughout the production chain.

We are operating according to plan. Prices 
on the steel scrap market have shown a re-
newed upward trend. After price volatility in 
2023, the trend stabilised in Q2 2024, with 
copper reaching record highs, driven by 
expected spending on electrification and 
the green transition, along with stock mar-
ket speculation. Prices in other programmes 
remain stable and have not changed signifi-
cantly since the end of last year.

We have extended and increased a revolv-
ing credit facility. 

The economy is following the macroeco-
nomic picture, with inflation moderating, 
facing staff shortages and pressure for high-
er wages.

We believe that no events have occurred 
after the balance sheet date which could 
impact the financial statements and as a re-
sult of which additional procedures would 
have to be performed to determine wheth-
er those events were accurately presented 
in these financial statements.
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2. Financial Report
Dinos d.o.o. is a registered legal entity in Slovenia. The address of the registered office is Šlan-
drova ulica 6, 1000 Ljubljana. The financial statements of the Company are drawn up for the 
year ended 31 December 2023. 

The values are shown in EUR. 
Dinos d.o.o. is one of the companies in the Scholz Group, which is controlled by Chiho Envi-
ronmental Group Ltd, a global group based in Hong Kong, abbreviated as CEG. 

The financial statements of Dinos d.o.o. are included in the group financial statements of the 
Scholz Group, which are available at the registered office of Scholz Recycling GmbH and on 
the following website 
https://www.unternehmensregister.de/ureg/?submitaction=language&language=en. 

The Group financial statements for the Scholz Group and the CEG Group are presented in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Dinos d.o.o. does not prepare Group financial statements for 2023 for its subordinated compa-
nies because their influence is small.

2.  Financial 

     Report
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  Explanatory 
note

 in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Net sales revenue 2.6.4. 173,042,187 215,795,334

    

2. Capitalised own products and own services  10,043 7,200

    

3. Other operating income with  revaluation  
operating income 2.6.5. 1,743,151 389,375

    

4. Costs of goods, materials, and services 2.6.6. -155,294,858 -193,120,580

  a) Costs of goods and materials sold  -138,092,521 -167,172,012

  b) Costs of services  -17,202,337 -20,417,699

    

5. Labour costs 2.6.7. -12,431,200 -11,886,663

  a) Wages and salaries  -8,741,559 -8,566,279

  b) Social security costs (separately shown costs of 
retirement insurance)  

 -1,449,593 -1,429,614

  Retirement insurance costs  -773,628 -758,116

  c) Other employee costs  -2,240,048 -1,890,771

    

6. Depreciation and write-offs 2.6.8. -4,506,165 -4,128,617

  a) Depreciation  -4,494,751 -4,114,589

  b) Non-current assets write-offs  -8 -6,006

  c) Current assets write-offs  -11,406 -8,022

    

7. Other operating expenses 2.6.9. -861,186 -787,919

    

8. Financial revenue from financial investments 2.6.11. 0 685,328

  a) Financial revenue from investments in others  0 685,328

    

  Explanatory 
note

 in EUR

 2023 2022

9. Financial revenue from given loans 2.6.11. 225,041 180,105

  a) Interest for given loans to subsidiaries  225,041 180,105

    

10. Financial revenue from receivables 2.6.11. 216,111 911,471

  a) Financial revenue for receivables from subsidiaries  112,951 619,744

  b) Financial revenue for receivables from others  103,160 291,727

    

11. Financial expenses from financial liabilities 2.6.12. -446,086 -206,434

  a) Interests for loans from bank  -260,357 -122,381

  b) Financial expenses from other financial liabilities  -185,729 -84,053

    

12. Financial expenses from operating liabilities 2.6.12. -10,220 -778,198

  a) Financial expenses from operation liabilities 
from subsidiaries

 
-7,806 -603,229

  b) Financial expenses from other business liabilities  -2,414 -174,969

    

13. Other revenues  180,311 249,053

   

14. Other expenses  -59,890 -82,721

   

15. Income tax expenses 2.6.13. -148,890 858,434

   

16. Deferred income tax  20,185 -4,578

    

17. Net profit/loss for the year  1,678,533 6,363,722

The accounting policies and notes are an integral part of the financial statements and should 
be read in conjunction with them.

2.1.	Income Statement for Financial Year Ended on 31 December 2023
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2.2.	 Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for 
Financial Year Ended on 31 December   2023

 

Note

 in EUR

 2023 2022

19. Net profit or loss for the period  1,678,533 6,363,722

20. Adjustment of surplus from revaluation of 
intangible assets and tangible fixed assets 0 0 

21. Variations of surplus from the revaluation of 
financial assets, held for sale 0 0 

22. Profit and loss arising from the translation of 
financial statements of companies abroad (effects 
of exchange rate changes) 0 0

23. Other elements of comprehensive income  -78,454 27,360

24. Total comprehensive income for the period  1,600,079 6,391,083

The accounting policies and notes are an integral part of the financial statements and should 
be read in conjunction with them.

 

 Note

 in EUR

 31/12/2023 31.12.2022

ASSETS  90,119,586 83,984,247

A. Non-current assets  45,502,413 42,907,890

I. Intangible assets and long-term deferred costs 2.6.15. 155,907 157,857

   1. Intangible assets  77,447 74,544

   2. Long-term deferred costs and accrued revenues  78,459 83,312

II. Property, plant and equipment  2.6.16. 39,667,272 40,090,984

   1. Land and buildings  22,316,359 22,375,880

        a) Land  8,243,681 8,243,681

        b) Buildings  14,072,678 14,132,200

   2. Production facilities and machinery  16,040,282 16,248,061

   3. Other machinery and equipment  230,421 327,391

   4. Property, plant and equipment under 
construction and in production

 837,471 1,016,223

   5. Advances for the acquisition of tangible 
fixed assets

 242,740 123,428

III. Long-term financial investments 2.6.18. 5,521,572 2,521,572

   1. Long-term financial investment, other than loans  2,521,572 2,521,572

        a) Investments in subsidiaries  15,000 15,000

        b) Other long-term investments  2,506,572 2,506,572

   2. Long-term loans  3,000,000 0

        a) Long-term loans to subsidiaries  3,000,000 0

IV. Deferred tax assets 2.6.14. 157,663 137,478

B. Current assets  44,547,646 41,051,969

I. Assets available for sale  0 0

II. Inventories 2.6.20. 11,779,548 10,892,880

   1. Material  11,606,495 10,499,191

   2. Products and merchandise  17,685 98,203

   3. Advances for inventories  155,368 295,486

2.3.	 Balance sheet as at 31/12/2023
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   in EUR

 Note 31/12/2023 31.12.2022

III. Short-term financial investments 2.6.19. 0 3,035,507

   1. Short-term financial investments excluding loans  0 35,507

       a) Other short-term investments  0 35,507

   2. Short-term loans 2.6.19. 0 3,000,000

       a) Short-term loans to subsidiaries  0 3,000,000

IV. Short-term trade receivables 2.6.21. 31,444,562 25,831,160

   1. Short-term operating receivables from subsidiaries  142,204 1,527

   2. Short-term operating receivables towards customers  28,136,648 23,067,920

   3. Short-term trade receivables from the state  2,953,981 2,647,103

   4. Short–term operating receivables from others  211,729 114,611

V. Cash 2.6.22. 1,323,536 1,292,422

C. Short-term deferred costs and accrued revenues 2.6.23. 69,526 24,388

   in EUR

 Note 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  90,119,586 83,984,247

A. Equity 2.6.23. 54,679,311 53,069,363

I. Issued capital  2,279,668 2,279,668

II. Capital reserves  9,740,278 9,740,278

III. Profit reserves  13,530,308 13,530,308

   1. Legal reserves  966,100 966,100

   2. Other profit reserves  12,564,208 12,564,208

IV. Reserves resulting from valuation at fair value  -9,252 69,202

V. Net operating result from previous years  27,459,775 21,086,184

VI. Net operating result of the year  1,678,533 6,363,722

B. Provisions and long-term accrued costs and 
deferred revenue 2.6.24. 916,858 781,733

I. Provisions for retirement benefits and similar 
   obligations

 
916,858 781,733

   in EUR

 Note 31/12/2023 31.12.2022

C. Non-current liabilities 2.6.25. 4,658,639 5,435,745

I. Long-term financial liabilities  4,658,639 5,435,745

   1. Long-term financial liabilities to banks  2,566,667 3,966,667

   2. Other long-term financial liabilities  2,091,973 1,469,078

D. Current liabilities  27,778,465 21,886,792

I. Short-term financial liabilities 2.6.25. 6,841,904 2,306,188

   1. Short-term financial liabilities to banks  5,900,000 1,400,000

   2. Other short-term financial liabilities  941,904 906,188

II. Short-term trade liabilities 2.6.26. 20,936,561 19,580,604

  1. Short-term operating liabilities to group companies  22,261 17,322

   2. Short-term operating liabilities to suppliers  19,875,512 18,604,581

   3. Short-term trade payables on advances  10,390 12,500

   4. Short-term liabilities to the state  386,255 351,564

   5. Other short-term operating liabilities  642,143 594,637

E. Short-term accruals and deferred income 2.6.27. 2,086,313 2,810,613

The accounting policies and notes are an integral part of the financial statements and should 
be read in conjunction with them.
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2.4.	 Cash Flow Statement for Financial Year Ended on 31 December 2023

  in EUR

 2023 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities   

a) Net profit or loss   

    Profit or loss before tax 1,807,238 7,226,734

    Corporate income tax and any other taxes not included in 
    operating expenses -128,705 -853,856

b) Adjustments for   

    Amortisation/Depreciation 4,494,751 4,114,589

    Operating revenue from revaluation -595,857 -94,509

    Operating expenses from revaluation 11,414 14,028

    Financial income excluding financial income from 
    operating receivables

-225,041 -906,633

    Financial expenses excluding financial expenses from 
    operating liabilities 446,086 778,231

    Total cash flows derived from the profit and loss 
    account items 5,809,887 10,278,583

   

c) Changes in net current assets – operating balance sheet items  

Opening less closing operating receivables -5,613,402 8,385,063

Opening less closing deferred costs and accrued revenues -45,139 -7,921

Opening less closing deferred tax assets -20,185 4,578

Opening less closing assets (disposal groups) held for sale 0 0

Opening less closing inventories -98,908 2,210,107

Closing less opening operating liabilities 1,355,957 -1,769,733

Closing less opening accrued costs and deferred revenue, 
and provisions

-589,176 567,266

Closing less opening deferred tax liabilities   

Total other operating assets and liabilities -5,010,853 9,389,358

   

d) Net cash flow from (used in) operating activities 799,034 19,667,942

   

  in EUR

 2023 2022

B. Cash flow from investing activities   

a) Cash receipts from investing activities   

Cash receipts from interest and profit participations (investment 
activities)

225,041 1,443,872

Cash receipts from disposal of intangible assets 0 0

Cash receipts from disposal of property, plant, and equipment 542,711 130,085

Cash receipts from disposal of investment property 0 0

Cash receipts from disposal of non-current financial assets 0 0

Cash receipts from disposal of current financial assets 2,000,000 37,122

Total cash receipts from investing activities 2,767,752 1,611,079

b) Disbursements from investing activities   

Cash disbursements for the acquisition of intangible assets -20,725 -10,204

Cash disbursements for the acquisition of property, plant, and 
equipment

-4,023,190 -7,360,670

Cash disbursements for the acquisition of investment property 0 0

Cash disbursements for the acquisition of non-current financial 
asset

0 0

Cash disbursements for the acquisition of current financial asset -2,000,000 0

Total cash disbursements from investing activities -6,043,915 -7,370,874

c) Net cash from (used in) investing activities -3,276,163 -5,759,795
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  in EUR

 2023 2022

C. Cash flow from financing activities   

a) Cash receipts from financing activities   

Cash receipts from paid-up capital and interest 0 0

Cash receipts from the increase in long-term financial liabilities 4,500,000 1,445,333

Cash receipts from increase in financial liabilities 0 0

Income from acquisitions of companies 0 0

Total cash receipts from financing activities 4,500,000 1,445,333

b) Disbursements from financing activities   

Cash disbursements from paid interest pertaining to financing -591,757 -273,255

Cash repayments of equity 0 0

Cash disbursements from long-term financial liabilities -1,400,000 -2,603,357

Cash disbursements from short-term financial liabilities 0 -5,100,000

Cash disbursements for the distribution of dividends and other 
profit participations

0 -7,000,000

Total cash disbursements from financing activities -1,991,757 -14,976,612

c) Net cash from (used in) financing activities 2,508,243 -13,531,279

D. Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   

a) Net cash for the period 31,114 376,868

b) Opening balance of cash 1,292,422 915,555

c) Total closing balance of cash 1,323,536 1,292,422

The accounting policies and notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
and should be read in conjunction with them.
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2.5.	 Statement of Changes in Equity for Financial Year Ended on 31 December 2023

 Called-up capital Profit reserves  EUR

 
Share capital Capital surplus Legal reserves

Other revenue 
reserves

Reserves from valuation 
at fair value

Net operating profit 
or loss brought 

forward

Net operating 
profit/loss for the 

year
Total

A.1. Opening balance as at 31 December 2022 2,279,668 9,740,278 966,100 12,564,208 69,202 21,086,184 6,363,722 53,069,363

A.2. Opening balance – 1 January 2023 2,279,668 9,740,278 966,100 12,564,208 69,202 21,086,184 6,363,722 53,069,363

B.1. Changes in equity – transactions with owners         

         a) Dividend distribution      0  0

Total changes in equity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B.2. Total comprehensive income for the reporting period         

         a) Entry of net profit/loss for the reporting period      0 1,678,533 1,678,533

         b) Other items of total comprehensive income in the reporting period     -78,454 9,868  -68,586

Total comprehensive income 0 0 0 0 -78,454 9,868 1,678,533 1,609,947

B.3. Changes within equity         

         a) Allocation of remaining net profit of the comparative reporting 
             period to other equity components

     
6,363,722 -6,363,722 0

Total changes in equity 0 0 0 0 0 6,363,722 -6,363,722 0

C. Closing balance – 31 December 2023 2,279,668 9,740,278 966,100 12,564,208 -9,252 27,459,775 1,678,533 54,679,311

D. Distributable profit for 2023 0 0 0 0 0 27,459,775 1,678,533 29,138,309
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 Called-up capital Profit reserves  EUR

 
Share capital Capital surplus Legal reserves

Other revenue 
reserves

Reserves from valuation 
at fair value

Net operating profit 
or loss brought 

forward

Net operating 
profit/loss for the 

year
Total

A.1. Opening balance as at 31 December 2021 2,279,668 9,740,278 966,100 12,564,208 41,842 20,748,682 7,334,234 53,675,012

A.2. Opening balance – 1 January 2022 2,279,668 9,740,278 966,100 12,564,208 41,842 20,748,682 7,334,234 53,675,012

B.1. Changes in equity – transactions with owners         

         a) Dividend distribution      -7,000,000  -7,000,000

Total changes in equity 0 0 0 0 0 -7,000,000 0 -7,000,000

B.2. Total comprehensive income for the reporting period         

         a) Entry of net profit/loss for the reporting period       6,363,722 6,363,722

         b) Other items of total comprehensive income in the reporting period     27,360 3,268  30,628

Total comprehensive income 0 0 0 0 27,360 3,268 6,363,722 6,394,351

B.3. Changes within equity         

         a) Allocation of remaining net profit of the comparative reporting 
             period to other equity components

     7,334,234 -7,334,234 0

Total changes in equity 0 0 0 0 0 7,334,234 -7,334,234 0

C. Closing balance – 31 December 2022 2,279,668 9,740,278 966,100 12,564,208 69,202 21,086,184 6,363,722 53,069,363

D. Distributable profit for 2022 0 0 0 0 0 21,086,184 6,363,722 27,449,907

The accounting policies and notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
and should be read in conjunction with them.
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2.6.	  Notes to Financial Statements

Company name Dinos, družba za pripravo sekundarnih surovin d.o.o.

Registered office and company address Šlandrova ulica 6, 1231 Ljubljana – Črnuče

Activity code 38.320 – Recycling of scrap metal and residual materials

Company registration number 5003318000

Tax number SI44905793

Legal status of the company Private limited company Ltd.

Financial year 2023

Status of the entity Entered; entry: 061/10072600

Date of entry in the companies register 03 January 1990

Ownership share 100% 

Share capital EUR 2,279,668

Company`s management CEO    Zorko Damijan
CFO    Bambič Benjamin
COO   Fetzer Achim Christian

The consolidated financial statements for the companies in the Group are available from the head 
office of Scholz Recycling GmbH at the following e-mail address: 
https://www.unternehmensregister.de/ureg/?submitaction=language&language=en . 

For the wider Group, the consolidated financial statements are published on the Chiho 
Environmental Group Limited website: 
http://chihogroup.com/Home/Relationship/investorFinance

2.6.1.	 Company profile
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The financial statements have been compiled in 
accordance with the Slovene accounting stand-
ards and the Companies Act (ZGD-1). The following 
two fundamental accounting assumptions have 
been considered in the preparation of these finan-
cial statements: the indefinite nature of operations 
and the occurrence of a business event. The qual-
itative accounting characteristics of the financial 
statements are understandability, relevance, relia-
bility and comparability.

Pursuant to the ZGD-1, the company is classified as 
a large company. 

These accounts have been approved by the com-
pany's board of directors 19/07/2024.

Use of assessments and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements is also 
based on certain estimates and assumptions made 
by the Management that affect both the unamor-
tised cost of assets and liabilities and the reported 
income and expenses of the period. The Man-
agement's assessment includes, inter alia, the de-
termination of the useful lives and residual values 
of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets, adjustments to the value of inventories and 
receivables, deferred taxes, assumptions relevant 
to the actuarial calculation of defined employee 
benefits, assumptions included in the calculation 
of any provision for litigation. Although the Man-
agement carefully considers all factors that could 

2.6.2. Basis for the preparation of the financial statements

affect these assumptions when making them, it is 
possible that the actual consequences of events 
could differ from those estimated. Therefore, ac-
counting estimates require the use of judgement 
and take into account possible changes in the busi-
ness environment, new developments, additional 
information, and experience.

Conversion of foreign currencies

The conversion of assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies in the functional currency is performed 
according to the exchange rate at the date of an 
individual business transaction. The foreign ex-
change gains and losses incurred from such op-
erations and the revaluation of cash and liabilities, 
denominated in foreign currency as at the balance 
sheet day to the functional currency, are recog-
nised in the income statement. 

Monetary items in foreign currencies are convert-
ed at the reference exchange rate of the European 
Central Bank or foreign exchange list of the Bank 
of Slovenia (currencies for which the European 
Central Bank does not publish reference rates) on 
the last day of the year. Non-monetary items meas-
ured at the purchase value in a foreign currency, 
are converted at the exchange rate applicable on 
the day of the transaction, while non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are converted at the exchange rate applicable on 
the day the fair value was determined. 

2.6.3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Intangible assets and long-term deferred costs

The items of intangibles comprise long-term deferred development costs, invest-
ments in industrial property, and other intellectual property rights. Long-term pre-
payments and accrued income are long-term deferred costs.

Intangibles are recognised if it is likely that economic benefits associated with the 
assets will flow to the entity. On initial recognition, they are measured at cost.

The items of intangible assets with finite useful lives are depreciated over their 
useful lives. The amortisation is accounted for using the straight-line amortisation 
method. The amortisation rates of intangible assets are as follows and are the 
same as the previous year:

Licences and patents 5% - 10%

Concessions, trademarks and licences 5% - 10%

Subsequent expenditure related to intangible assets adds to its purchase value, 
provided they increase the future benefits compared to the previously assessed 
benefits. 

The items of intangibles are derecognised upon disposal. In the books of ac-
counts, the items of property, plant and equipment are disclosed separately at 
their cost and accumulated impairment loss. In the balance sheet, only the book 
value.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets are represented by land, buildings, manufacturing equip-
ment and other equipment.

The items of property, plant and equipment are recognised if it is probable that 
economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the Company and if 
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the cost can be measured reliably. On initial 
recognition, they are measured at cost. The 
subsequent costs associated with tangible 
fixed assets increase their purchase values, 
if they increase their future benefits com-
pared to those originally assessed. Repairs 
or maintenance of tangible fixed assets 
are intended for the renovation or mainte-
nance of future economic benefits expect-
ed on the basis of an originally assessed 
rate of the performance of the assets. When 
they occur, they are recognised as costs or 
operating expenses.

The items of property, plant and equip-
ment are depreciated individually over their 
useful life. The following depreciation rates 
are used, which are the same as in the pre-
vious year:

Buildings 1,5% - 10%

Computer equipment 20% - 50%

Transport equipment  10% - 33,30%

Production equipment  10% - 33,30%

Property, plant and equipment are derecog-
nised on disposal when their use is no longer 
expected to generate future economic ben-
efits. In the books of accounts, the items of 
property, plant and equipment are disclosed 
separately at their cost and accumulated im-
pairment loss. In the balance sheet, only the 
book value.

The right to use assets

The Company recognises an item of property, 
plant and equipment as the right-of-use as-
set at the inception of the lease (i.e., the date 
when the leased asset is available for use). 

Right-of use assets are measured at cost less 
any accumulated depreciation and impair-
ment losses and adjusted for any remeasure-
ment of lease liabilities. The purchase value 
of the right to use the asset comprises the 
amount of the initial measurement of the 
lease liability, the initial direct costs and the 
lease payments made on or before the com-
mencement date, less any lease incentives 
received. 

The right to use the assets is depreciated on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease 
or the estimated useful life of the assets over 
the period shorter than described below:

Land and buildings Up to 10 years

Motor vehicles and 
other equipment 4 to 5 years

Production equipment 
and machinery 3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to 
the Company at the end of the lease term or 
the Company exercises a purchase option, 
the depreciation is calculated based on the 
estimated useful life of the asset.

Right-of-use assets are revalued to account 
for any impairment. 

Lease liability

At the date of commencement of the lease, 
the Company recognises the lease liabilities 
measured at the present value of all lease 
payments to be made over the lease term. 

The leases include fixed leases less any lease 
incentive receivables, acceptable rents that 
depend on an index or rate, and amounts 
expected to be paid by the lessee under re-
sidual value guarantees. The lease payments 
also include the exercise price of a purchase 
option if it is reasonably certain that the 
Company will exercise that option and pay-
ments of penalties for terminating the lease, 
if the lease term reflects the Company exer-
cising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend 
on an index or rate are recognised as expens-
es (unless they are incurred to produce in-
ventories) in the period in which the event or 
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease pay-
ments, the company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate as the interest rate implicit 
in the lease is not readily determinable. Af-
ter the commencement date, the amount 
of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the 
accretion of interest and reduced for the 
lease payments made. The carrying amount 
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease term, a 
change in the lease payments (e.g. changes 
to future payments resulting from a change 
in an index or rate used to determine such 

lease payments) or a change in the assess-
ment of an option to purchase the underly-
ing asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included 
in other long-term and short-term financial 
liabilities.

Short-term and low-value leases

The Company applies the short-term lease 
recognition exemption to its short-term 
leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term 
of 12 months or less and do not include an 
option to purchase). It also applies the lease 
of low-value assets recognition exemption 
to leases of assets that are considered to be 
of low-value. Lease payments on short-term 
leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognised as an expense on a straight-line 
bass over the lease term.

Financial investments

Financial investments are investments in the 
equity of other entities or in financial liabili-
ties of other entities, of the government, of 
a region or municipality, or of other issuers 
(investments in loans).

Investments are classified as: financial as-
sets at fair value through profit or loss, 
held-to-maturity investments, investments 
in loans, and available-for-sale financial as-
sets. The classification is based on the pur-
pose of their acquisition.



47Annual Report 2023    Dinos d.o.o. Ljubljana

On acquisition, all the financial assets with 
exception of the financial assets classified at 
fair value through profit or loss, are recog-
nised at cost which includes the acquisition 
costs directly associated with the transac-
tion. Financial assets classified at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognized at fair 
value where the direct costs of acquisition 
are not included in their purchase value.

Other long-term investments are not reval-
ued for the purpose of strengthening.

Long-term investments are revalued for im-
pairment if the investment is losing value 
and its estimated amortised cost is less than 
the carrying amount. The difference identi-
fied represents the revaluation financial ex-
pense relating to the long-term investment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss

Financial assets classified as financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss are meas-
ured at fair value. Profits and losses of in-
vestments classified as financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised 
directly in the income statement. 

For financial investments intended for ac-
tive trading on organized financial markets, 
the fair value is set at the amount of quoted 
prices of the stock exchange listing on the 
balance sheet date at the end of trading. The 
fair value of investments whose market price 
is not reported on financial markets is deter-

mined with reference to other instruments 
that are substantially the same or the fair 
value is determined as a net current value 
of future cash flows which may be expected 
from a certain financial investment. 

Procurement and the sale of financial invest-
ments classified in the group of financial as-
sets at fair value in the income statement are 
recognized on the day of the trade, i.e., the 
day the Company undertook to purchase or 
sell the asset.

Held-to-maturity financial investments

Financial investments with fixed or deter-
minable payments and a fixed maturity 
which are not derivative instruments are 
recognized as held-to-maturity financial in-
vestments in the case of a positive intention 
and the ability to retain the investment un-
til maturity. Investments that the Company 
holds for an indefinite period of time, are not 
classified in this Group. 

Investments recognised as financial invest-
ments in property held to maturity are val-
ued at the amortised costs using the effec-
tive interest method. The amortized cost is 
computed through the allocation of the pre-
mium or discount upon acquisition through-
out the holding period until maturity. Gains 
and losses on investments designated at 
amortized cost are recognized in the profit 
or loss (disposal, impairment or effects of 
amortized discounts/premiums). 

Investments classified as held-to-maturity 
investments are recognised on the settle-
ment date.

Investments in loans

Investments in loans are financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted on the organized stock markets. 
They include loans acquired by the Compa-
ny as well as loans derived from the Com-
pany. Loans are measured at the amortised 
costs using the effective interest method. 
Investments in loans are recognised on the 
settlement date.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Procurement and sale of financial invest-
ments classified in the group of availa-
ble-for-sale financial assets are recognized 
on the day of the trade, i.e., the day the com-
pany undertook to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets available for sale are classi-
fied in the following categories upon recog-
nition:
•	 held for trading purposes
•	 held not for trading purposes

Investments held for trading purposes are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss 
and for investments not held for trading pur-
poses, the Company has elected to measure 
them at fair value through equity (other 
comprehensive income) in accordance with 
SAS 3.

A change in the fair value of available-for-sale 
investments that are not held for trading is 
recognised directly in capital as an increase 
or decrease in the reserve arising from fair 
value measurement; if the fair value of an 
available-for-sale financial asset is less than 
its recognised amount, a negative reserve 
arising from fair value measurement is rec-
ognised. 

On derecognition of available-for-sale in-
vestments that are not held for trading pur-
poses, the difference between the carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration 
received and the cumulative gain or loss 
recognised directly in equity is recognised in 
profit or loss. The carrying amounts of secu-
rities are relieved on sale or other disposal at 
the average prices of securities.

Investments classified as available-for-sale 
for which there is no published price in an 
active market and whose fair value cannot 
be reliably measured are measured at cost.

The investments shown in the balance sheet 
under Other stocks and shares represent 
available-for-sale investments that the Com-
pany does not hold for trading. 
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Financial assets at fair value through profit 
and loss.

The change in fair value of investments clas-
sified as Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss and investments held for trad-
ing is recognised directly in profit or loss.

On derecognition of these investments, the 
difference between the carrying amount 
and the sum of the consideration received, 
and the cumulative gain or loss is recognised 
in profit or loss.

Financial investments in group companies, 
associate companies and joint ventures

Investments in Group companies, associates, 
and joint ventures are initially valued at cost. 
Any impairment loss is recognised in profit 
or loss.

Impairment of financial investments

The revaluation of financial investments due 
to impairment is performed by the Compa-
ny as soon as justified reasons arise, and at 
the latest at the end of the accounting pe-
riod. The basis for impairment is objective 
evidence due to events after initial recog-
nition, such as data on operations, data on 
the audited carrying amount of the invest-
ment. Objective reasons for performing an 
impairment test of a financial investment are 
considered to exist when the fair value of 
the financial asset at the balance sheet date 
is 20% lower than the purchase cost of the 
financial asset. An impairment test of an in-

vestment is performed individually for each 
investment or group of investments.

A loss resulting from a permanent impair-
ment of a financial asset and not merely a 
short-term decline in fair value is recognised 
as a financial expense. The amount of the 
impairment loss is measured as the differ-
ence between the investment’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows.

A change in fair value of financial assets avail-
able for sale is recognised directly in equity 
as a revaluation surplus.

Inventories

The value of inventories is represented by 
inventories of materials, products, and mer-
chandise and advances made against inven-
tories. 

They are valued at cost and are depreciated 
during the year using the moving average 
method.

The value of inventories is not fully recov-
erable if the inventories are damaged, fully 
or partially obsolete, or if their resale value 
falls below the level of inventory prices. The 
value of inventories is also not recoverable 
if the estimated costs of completion or the 
estimated costs associated with the sale are 
increased.If the carrying amount of invento-
ries exceeds their net realisable value, it must 

be written down to its net realisable value. 
The value of inventories must be reduced 
separately for each item or group of similar 
items of inventories. 

A decrease in the value of inventories is 
charged to operating expenses. 

Operating receivables

Operating receivables are initially recognised 
at amounts recorded in the relevant docu-
ments under the assumption that they will 
be collected. Subsequent increases or de-
creases in receivables increase or decrease 
operating or financial revenues or expenses. 
Subsequent increases or decreases mainly 
mean changes in the value of receivables 
due to subsequent discounts, refunds of 
goods sold, recognised claims or later errors 
determined.

Receivables are measured at their amortised 
cost after their initial recognition. The am-
ortised cost of the receivable is the amount 
by which the receivable is measured at in-
itial recognition, decreased by repayments 
and by the amounts of impairment due to 
uncollectibility. Operating receivables due 
in the next twelve months are shown in the 
balance sheet among short-term operating 
receivables and over twelve months among 
long-term operating receivables.

To account for receivable impairment, the 
difference between the carrying and real-

isable amount of an individual receivable is 
recognised as an allowance and included in 
the revaluation expenses. 

The Company provides for a correction of 
receivable value based on an individual as-
sessment of the recoverability of each re-
ceivable.

  

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposit money 
on bank accounts and cash equivalents. 

Cash equivalents represent short-term bank 
deposits with a maturity of up to three 
months.

Short-term deferred costs and 
accrued revenue

Deferred costs and accrued revenue com-
prise short-term deferred costs and short-
term accrued revenue. They are recognised 
at the amounts recorded in the relevant 
documents evidencing their incurrence and 
existence.
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Capital

Total equity consists of called-up capital, 
capital surplus, revenue reserves, retained 
earnings or accumulated loss, revaluation 
surplus and undistributed net profit or the 
unsettled loss of the financial year.Acquired 
treasury shares and own business shares are 
deducted from the equity. Any gains or loss-
es arising on acquisition, disposal, issue or 
withdrawal of shares and interests are deb-
ited or credited to equity.

The revaluation surplus relates to increases 
in the carrying amount of property, plant 
and equipment assets, intangible assets, 
long-term investments and short-term in-
vestments by revaluation model and is 
accounted for separately according to the 
origination as well as to unrealised actuarial 
losses/gains on provisions for employee ter-
mination benefits.

Provisions and long-term accrued 
costs and deferred revenues

Provisions are formed for present liabilities 
arising from obligating past events that are 
expected to be settled in a period that is not 
specified with certainty and whose size can 
be reliably estimated. The amounts recog-
nised as provisions are the best estimate of 
the expenditure required to settle liabilities 
at the balance sheet date.

Long-term accrued costs and deferred reve-
nue represent deferred revenue expected to 
cover the estimated costs or expenses in a 
period of more than one year, as well as the 
accrued costs and expenses which will cover 
future costs or expenses.

Provisions and long-term accrued costs 
and deferred revenue are reduced by the 
amounts of costs or expenses for the settle-
ment of which they were originally recog-
nised.

Pursuant to the Slovene legislation, em-
ployees are entitled to jubilee awards and 
termination benefits on retirement. When 
an employee fulfils the requirements set 
for retirement, he/she is entitled to termina-
tion benefits paid in a lump sum. Further-
more, employees are also entitled to jubilee 
awards for each full ten years of service with 
the same employer.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise the amounts 
borrowed on the basis of loan contracts and 
debt securities issued. Deposits and liabilities 
to lessors arising from a finance lease can 
also be regarded as loans received.

Financial liabilities are divided into long-term 
liabilities if they are to be settled or repaid 
over a period longer than one year, and 
short-term.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised 
at amounts arising from the relevant docu-
ments which evidence the receipt of cash or 
a settlement of another liability. After initial 
recognition, they are measured at amortised 
costs using the effective interest method.

Operating liabilities

Operating liabilities are supplier credits for 
goods or services purchased, payables to 
employees for their work performed, liabil-
ities to providers of funds arising from ac-
crued interest and similar items, payables 
to the state arising from taxes, including the 
value added tax payable, and liabilities asso-
ciated with the distribution of profit or loss. A 
specific class of operating liabilities are liabil-
ities to customers arising from advances and 
collaterals received.

Operating liabilities are classified as long-
term liabilities if their settlement is expected 
within a period of more than one year. Short-
term liabilities comprise liabilities that have 
matured (but have not yet been settled) and 
those liabilities that mature within a period 
of one year.

On initial recognition, operating liabilities are 
measured at amounts arising from the rele-
vant documents which evidence the receipt 
of a product or service, the work performed 
or costs accrued, or a share in profit or loss.

Short-term accrued costs 
and deferred revenue

Accrued costs and deferred revenue com-
prise short-term accrued costs or expenses 
and short-term deferred revenue. They are 
recognised at the amounts recorded in the 
relevant documents evidencing their incur-
rence and existence.

Among the short-term accrued costs, the 
Company discloses accrued, unpaid leave, 
which is calculated based on the unused 
days of leave and the average gross salary of 
the employee, and the unpaid excess hours 
on the last day during the period in question.

Revenue

Revenue is the increase in economic bene-
fits during the accounting period in the form 
of increases in assets (for example, cash or re-
ceivables due to the sale of goods or servic-
es) or decreases in debts (for example, due 
to the failure to settle them). They affect the 
size of capital through profit or loss. 

Revenues are classified into operating reve-
nues, financial revenues and other revenues. 
Operating revenue and financial revenue are 
taken (or treated) as ordinary income.

Operating income is income from sales and 
other operating income related to business 
impact.
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Sales revenue is revenue arising from con-
tracts with customers for the sale of goods 
or services. Sales revenue is recognised on 
transfer (delivery) of contractually agreed 
goods or services to customers in the 
amount of consideration the Company ex-
pects to be entitled in exchange for those 
goods or services. Revenue is classified into 
the revenue from the sale of capitalised 
products and services and revenue earned 
from the sale of merchandise and materials. 
Amounts collected for the benefit of third 
parties, such as value-added tax and other 
duties levied on sales, are not included in 
the sales revenue. The same applies to the 
amounts collected for the benefit of a rep-
resentative (sales revenue is only the part of 
the consideration due to the agent for the 
representation services provided).

The goods or services are transferred when 
the customer acquires (or is in the process 
of acquiring) control over those goods and 
services. The customer acquires control of 
goods item or service when they acquire 
the right to decide on its use and the right 
to virtually all of its residual benefits. Such 
control includes the ability to prevent 
others from directing the use of goods or 
services, and obtaining the benefits from 
them. Benefits from goods or services com-
prise potential cash flows (receipts or cost 
savings) that can be obtained in all manner 
of ways either directly or indirectly.

The organisation transfers control of the 
goods or services and thereby fulfils the 

legal obligation, either at a specific time or 
gradually. 

At the contract inception, an entity identi-
fies all performance obligations contained 
in the contract. A stand-alone (separate) 
performance obligation is any obligation 
for the transfer of goods or services to a 
customer that: 
a) is identifiable as a separate performance 

obligation for the transfer of goods or 
services in accordance  with criteria set 
in the SAS; and 

b) the customer is able to use the contrac-
tually agreed goods or services inde-
pendently or together with other availa-
ble or easily accessible resources (assets). 
The fact that an entity sells goods or ser-
vices separately on a regular basis would, 
for example, indicate that the customer 
is able to use the goods or services inde-
pendently or together with other readily 
available resources.

Revenue from the sales is recognised at an 
amount reflecting the transaction price al-
located to the independent performance 
obligation. Transaction price is the amount 
of consideration an entity expectsto be 
entitled to in exchange for the transfer of 
goods or services to a customer, exclusive 
of the amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties. 

The management’s review of the impact 
of the change in the accounting standards 
on revenue recognition concluded that the 

change in the standards did not require any 
adjustments to the financial statements.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line 

basis over the term of each lease agreement.

Other operating income includes revalu-
ation gains arising from disposals of prop-
erty, plant and equipment, intangible fixed 
assets and investment property as the ex-
cess of their sale value over their carrying 
amount, and revaluation gains relating to 
impaired receivables when they are paid 
and the write-off of trade debts. Other op-
erating income also includes income from 
the reversal of provisions.

Financial income is generated in respect of 
financial investments and receivables. They 
are recognised irrespective of the revenues, 
unless there is reasonable doubt as to their 
size, maturity, and payability. They consist 
of accrued interest and shares in the prof-
its of others, as well as revaluation financial 
income. They are broken down into finan-
cial revenue that is not dependent on the 
profit or loss of others (for example, interest 
received) and financial revenue that is de-
pendent on the profit or loss of others (for 
example, dividends received).

Interest is charged in proportion to the 
period elapsed and according to the out-
standing principal and applicable interest 
rate. 

Financial income from profit-sharing is rec-

ognised when the right to receive payment 
is established. 

Other revenue is unusual items and other 
income and is disclosed in the amounts ac-
tually incurred.

Costs of materials and services

The costs of materials and services are the 
quantities of services and direct materials 
consumed and of the portion of materials 
and services associated with production 
overheads, purchasing and selling over-
heads, and administrative overheads. They 
are classified according to primary types.

The costs of materials and services not held 
in inventories prior to their use are stated 
at actual amounts on the purchase of such 
materials and services. Material costs go di-
rectly to costs.

Labour costs and reimbursements 
to employees

Employee benefits and reimbursements 
are all forms of consideration given by an 
entity in exchange for services rendered by 
employees. These costs are recognised by 
an entity as its labour costs or as shares in 
expanded profit before stating its profit in 
the profit or loss. Earnings may also be as-
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sociated with taxes which increase labour 
costs or the shares of employees in the ex-
tended profit.

On the balance sheet date, the Company 
accrues costs of vacation not utilised. Ex-
pected costs of accrued paid absences are 
measured as an additional amount which 
the Company expects to pay as a result of 
unutilised entitlement accrued as at the 
balance sheet date.

Employee benefits are accounted for in ac-
cordance with provisions of the Labour Act, 
collective agreement, general rules of the 
Company and employment contract.

Income tax

Tax assets or liabilities in respect of cur-
rent taxes for present and past periods are 
measured at the amount the Company is 
expecting to pay to the tax authority or at 
the amount of tax credits. Current tax assets 
or receivables are measured based on the 
tax rates (and tax rules) in force at the bal-
ance sheet date.Income tax is charged at 
19% of the tax base.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ac-
counted for using the balance sheet liability 
method. Only deferred assets and liabilities 
arising from temporary differences are rec-
ognised. A deferred tax asset is also recog-
nised on account of unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits carried forward to the 
next period, if it is probable that future tax-
able profit will be available against which 
the unused tax losses and unused tax cred-
its can be utilised.

On the balance sheet date, deferred tax as-
sets are revised and impaired on account 
of those tax assets for which it is no longer 
probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the unused tax loss-
es and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recog-
nised using the tax rate applicable when 
the asset is expected to be realised or lia-
bilities settled. Tax rates (and tax legislation) 
enacted at the balance sheet date are used. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising 
from transactions recognised directly in 
equity should be recognised in equity.

Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is a fundamental 
financial statement showing a true and fair 
view of changes in cash during the financial 
period under review. The cash flow state-
ment is drawn up using an indirect method 
in accordance with the Version II in compli-
ance with SRS 22. The cash flow statement 
discloses cash flows for the period arising 
from operating, investing and financing 
activities. In the cash flow statement, cash 
flows are disclosed at gross amounts. The 
cash flow statement data is derived from 
the balance sheet and the income state-
ment data, considering the necessary ad-
justments.
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2.6.4.	 Net sales revenue

2.6.4. Net sales revenue  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Revenue from the sale of products 157,535,927 200,113,665

2. Revenue from the sale of services 11,154,360 10,761,038

3. Revenue from the sale of merchandise 3,733,273 4,382,771

4. Rental revenue 618,627 537,859

Total net sales revenue 173,042,187 215,795,334

Net sales revenue 2023 2022

a) Revenue from sales to local companies within the group 0 0

b) Revenue from sales to foreign companies within the group 1,899,792 1,599,218

c) Revenue from sales in the local market 71,895,683 83,843,584

č) Revenue from sales in foreign markets 99,246,712 130,352,532

Total net sales revenue 173,042,187 215,795,334

Operating income for the reporting period decreased compared to 2022 due to lower 
sales prices and lower sales volumes. 

2.6.5. Other operating revenue including revaluation 
operating revenue and other revenues

2.6.5. Other operating revenue including revaluation operating revenue   in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Revenue from recoveries of written-off receivables 221 217

2. Operating revenue from revaluation 595,857 94,509

3. Other operating revenue 1,147,074 294,648

Total other operating revenue 1,743,151 389,375

Other revenues 2023 2022

1. Revenue from grants, compensation 180,298 249,053

Total other revenue 180,298 249,053

   

Capitalised own products and services 2023 2022

1. Capitalised own products and services 10,043 7,200

Total capitalised own products and services 10,043 7,200

In the reporting year, the income from recov-
eries of written-off receivables amounts to 
EUR 221 (2022: EUR 217).

There is no revenue from the write-off of 
provisions arising from actuarial calculations 
in 2023 and 2022.

Revaluation gains resulted from the sale of 
fixed assets of EUR 31,000 and at the write-off 
of prior years' liabilities of EUR 564,857 total-
ling EUR 595,857 (2022 EUR 94,509). 

During the reporting period, other operat-
ing revenue totalling EUR 1,147,074 (2022 EUR 
294,648) includes revenue from excise duty 
refunds amounting to EUR 167,262 (2022 EUR 
93,397) and revenue for subsidies received to 
assist the economy in the face of high ener-

gy prices due to the increase in energy prices 
EUR 979,812 (2022 EUR 180,000). There was 
no other revenue received as uncondition-
al subsidies due to the exemption from the 
payment of accrued payroll contributions as 
a consequence of the State measures to as-
sist the economy in the wake of the declara-
tion of a coronavirus pandemic (SARS-CoV-2) 
(2022 EUR 21,251, all payroll contributions are 
accrued and shown as payroll costs, and the 
part of these contributions that was exempt-
ed is shown as revenue). 

Other income received from compensation 
and other income amounts to EUR 180,298 
in 2023 (2022: EUR 249,053).

Capitalised own products and services amount 
to EUR 10,043 in 2023 (2022: EUR 7,200).
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2.6.6. Costs of goods, materials, and services

2.6.6. Costs of goods, materials, and services  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Cost of goods sold -131,199,849 -167,172,012

2. Costs of materials   

a) Energy costs -5,035,960 -3,682,493

b) Cost of auxiliary materials -548,706 -739,431

c) Costs of fixed asset spare parts -1,064,203 -858,926

č) Write-off of small inventory -68,752 -104,162

d) Other material costs -175,050 -145,856

Total material costs -6,892,672 -5,530,868

3. Cost of services

a) Cost of means of transport -6,789,175 -7,675,149

b) Cost of services related to the maintenance of fixed assets -1,278,955 -1,207,653

c) Rent -83,618 -96,662

č) Reimbursements of work-related costs to employees -160,673 -145,603

d) Bank charges and insurance premiums -718,905 -729,876

e) Costs of intellectual and personal services -556,106 -636,387

f) Costs of trade fairs, advertising and entertainment -182,641 -236,492

g) Service charges for casual labour -88,105 -109,494

h) Cost of other services -7,344,160 -9,580,383

Total costs of services -17,202,337 -20,417,699

Total costs of goods, materials and services -155,294,858 -193,120,580

Of which:   

1. Audit fees for the audit of the annual report 17,326 15,708

The Company is committed to auditing. The amount of the audit of the Company's annual re-
port and the audit of the parent company's reporting package in 2023 amounted to EUR 16,190 
and other assurance engagements – review of the report on relations with affiliated companies 
in accordance with Article 546 of the Companies Act ZGD-1 – amounted to EUR 1,136. 

2.6.7. Labour costs

 2.6.7. Stroški dela  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Salary costs -8,741,559 -8,566,279

2. Costs of social insurance -675,965 -671,498

3. Retirement insurance costs -773,628 -758,116

5. Other costs of labour -2,240,048 -1,890,771

Total labour costs -12,431,200 -11,886,663

     Of which:   

1. Management Board members income 349,984 785,725

2. Receipts of employees on individual contracts 0 0

In 2023, we had hired workers as well as employees. 

As of 31/12/2023, the Company as a user has 1 transferred worker (2022: 3 hired workers). The 
labour cost of hired employees in 2023 was EUR 88,459 (2022: EUR 153,303). 

All remuneration of the Company's senior management is fixed and approved by the Com-
pany's owner. The Management does not receive insurance premiums, commissions, or other 
additional payments.

The number of employees on the last day of the year is 385, the same as at the end of the pre-
vious year. The average number of employees based on hours worked in the 2023 accounting 
period is 367.89 and 357.64 in 2022.

Number of employees by length of service in the Company 2023 2022

from 0 to 10 years 245 235

10 to 20 years 93 109

20 to 30 years 40 32

over 30 years 7 9

Total number of employees on the last day of the year 385 385

Average number of employees based on working hours 
in the accounting period

367.89 357.64
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2.6.8. Write-offs

2.6.8. Write-offs  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Depreciation of long-term intangibles -17,372 -22,682

2. Depreciation of buildings -983,376 -987,203

3. Depreciation of equipment, replacement parts 
and small tools

-3,420,944 -3,013,451

4. Depreciation of the right to use assets -73,060 -91,252

5. Revaluated operating expenses associated with fixed assets -8 -6,006

6. Impairment of inventories and receivables -11,406 -8,022

Total write-offs -4,506,165 -4,128,617

The increase in depreciation charged on property, plant and equipment is due to the activa-
tion of the new equipment in 2023. 

2.6.9. Other operating expenses

2.6.9. Other operating expenses  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Purpose of building land -267,571 -250,268

2. Miscellaneous other costs -476,287 -456,185

3. Other -117,328 -81,466

Total other operating expenses -861,186 -787,919

Among other operating expenses, the second largest cost is for the levy on the purpose of 
building land, which is EUR 267,571 in 2023 (EUR 250,268 in 2022). The cost of compensation for 
the destruction of hazardous and non-hazardous waste collected from customers, which we 
record among the miscellaneous other costs and which is EUR 476,287 in 2023 (EUR 454,067 in 
2022), is the largest among the costs highlighted in this note. Other major costs that we classify 
as other operating expenses are the cost of royalties, membership fees, and miscellaneous 
contributions to associations amounting to 90,610 for the year 2023 (year 2022 EUR 60,359).

2.6.10. Costs by functional groups

2.6.10. Costs by functional groups  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Cost of goods sold -1,014,909 -1,046,769

2. Selling expenses -171,295,037 -206,706,858

3. General and administrative expenses -1,798,373 -2,170,151

Total costs by functional groups -174,108,318 -209,923,778

2.6.11. Financial revenues

2.6.11. Financial revenues  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Revenue from dividends and share of profits received 0 685,328

2. Interest income on loans granted within the Group 225,041 180,105

2. Income from other financial instruments in the Group 112,951 619,744

3. Interest revenue 66,353 291,707

4. Other financial revenues 36,807 20

Total financial revenue 441,152 1,776,904

Financial interest income in the Group is due to loans granted to the Group of EUR 225,041 
(2022 EUR 180,105). Other major financial income in 2023 is generated from derivatives business 
of EUR 112,951 (2022: EUR 619,744), which are used to hedge against price fluctuations on the 
world market, and financial income from accrued delays in customer payments of EUR 66,334 
(2022: EUR 84,928). Other financial income is also from exchange rate differences in foreign 
operations in foreign currency amounting to EUR 36,807 (2022: EUR 242,286).
No dividend income received in 2023 (2022: EUR 685,328).
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2.6.10. Costs by functional groups  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Cost of goods sold -1,014,909 -1,046,769

2. Selling expenses -171,295,037 -206,706,858

3. General and administrative expenses -1,798,373 -2,170,151

Total costs by functional groups -174,108,318 -209,923,778

2.6.11. Financial revenues  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Revenue from dividends and share of profits received 0 685,328

2. Interest income on loans granted within the Group 225,041 180,105

2. Income from other financial instruments in the Group 112,951 619,744

3. Interest revenue 66,353 291,707

4. Other financial revenues 36,807 20

Total financial revenue 441,152 1,776,904

2.6.12. Financial expenses

2.6.12. Financial expenses  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Financial expenses from loans received from banks -260,357 -122,381

2. Financial expenses for leases taken out -131,391 -44,624

3. Financial expenses for the interest on the right to use assets -5,390 -7,325

4. Financial expenses – interest on late payments to suppliers -34,164 -18,636

5. Financial expenses – exchange rate differences -2,414 -174,969

6. Expenses on other financial instruments in the Group -7,806 -603,229

7. Other financial expenses -14,784 -13,468

Total financial expenses -456,306 -984,633

Based on judgement and available information, the Management has assessed the fair values 
of the financial investments in 2023 and decided not to impair the investments (2022 EUR 0). 
For further details, see in note 2.6.18 Financial investments.

The financial expenses from loans received from banks in 2023 amounts to EUR 260,357 (2022 
EUR 122,380). 

Interest on leases in 2023 amounts to EUR 131,391 (2022: EUR 44,624). Interest on the rights to 
use borrowed funds in 2023 EUR 5,390 (2022 EUR 7,325).

Interest expense on late payments to suppliers EUR 34,164 (2022 EUR 18,636).

Expenses from exchange rate differences arising from foreign currency transactions in EUR 
2,414 (2022 EUR 174,5969).

In 2023, financial expenses include derivatives of EUR 60,744 (2022 EUR 603,229), which are 
used to hedge price fluctuations in the global market. We have accrued EUR 52,938 of such 
financial expenses in 2022 and will reverse them when they are realised in 2023. We use de-
rivative transactions only to hedge price and currency risks and not for speculative purposes.

2.6.13. Income tax

2.6.13. Income tax  in EUR

 2023 2022

1. Profit or loss before tax 1,807,238 7,226,734

2. Revenue adjusted to the tax recognised level 257,628 -685,545

3. Expenses adjusted to the tax recognised level 102,865 118,884

4. Tax allowances utilised -1,334,291 -2,173,488

5. Tax losses utilised   

5. Other -49,810 31,488

Total tax base 783,631 4,518,073

Calculated income tax (19%) 148,890 858,434

Effective tax rate 8% 12%
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2.6.14. Deferred tax

2.6.14. Deferred tax  in EUR

Balance Sheet Profit and loss statement

 2023 2022 2023 2022

Deferred tax assets     

  1. Value adjustments on financial investments 79,586 68,733 10,853 0

  2. Provisions 78,077 68,744 9,332 -4,578

Total deferred tax assets 157,663 137,478 20,185 -4,578

     

Deferred tax liabilities     

  1. Revaluation of fixed assets 0 0 0 0

  2. Revaluation of financial investments 0 0 0 0

Total deferred tax liabilities 0 0 0 0

Movement of deferred tax recognised in equity 2023 2022

1. Opening balance 137,478 142,055

2. Changes in deferred tax assets recognized in equity 20,185 -4,578

3. Changes in deferred tax liabilities recognized in equity 0 0

Total deferred tax recognized in equity 157,663 137,478

Deferred taxes have been provided on significant items.
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2.6.15. Intangible assets and long-term deferred costs

 2.6.15. Intangible assets and long-term deferred costs  in EUR

2023 Long-term property 
rights

Long-term deferred 
development costs

Other intangible 
long-term assets

Long-term deferred costs 
and accrued revenues

Acquisitions in progress Total

Purchase value       

  1. Opening balance 650,971 0 65,484 97,063  813,518

  2. Acquisitions 20,725  0 0  20,725

Closing balance 671,696 0 65,484 97,063 0 834,243

Value adjustment       

  1. Opening balance 579,422 0 62,489 13,751  655,662

  2. Amortisation and depreciation 17,577 0 245 4,853  22,675

Closing balance 596,999 0 62,733 18,604 0 678,336

Non-depreciable amount       

  1. Opening balance 71,549 0 2,995 83,312 0 157,857

2. Closing balance 74,697 0 2,751 78,459 0 155,907

       in EUR

2022 Long-term property 
rights

Long-term deferred 
development costs

Other intangible 
long-term assets

Long-term deferred costs 
and accrued revenues

Acquisitions in progress Total

Purchase value       

  1. Opening balance 643,567 0 62,684 97,063  803,314

  2. Acquisitions 7,404  2,800 0  10,204

  4. Disposals  0 0  0 0

Closing balance 650,970 0.00 65,484 97,063 0 813,518

Value adjustment       

  1. Opening balance 556,557 0 62,222 8,897  627,677

  2. Amortisation and depreciation 22,865 0 267 4,853  27,985

  3. Disposals 0 0 0  0 0

Closing balance 579,422 0 62,489 13,751 0 655,662

Non-depreciable amount       

  1. Opening balance 87,010 0 462 88,166 0 175,638

2. Closing balance 71,549 0 2,995 83,312 0 157,856

Intangible assets do not have limited owner-
ship rights or are not pledged as collateral 
for liabilities. No intangible assets are acqui-
red with government support. All intangible 
assets are paid for and there is no contractual 
commitment for them.
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2.6.16. Property, plant and equipment 

2023 Owned buildings Leased land with the 
right to use asset

Total buildings

Purchase value 34,342,413 549,395 34,891,808

Value adjustment 20,451,593 367,537 20,819,129

Current value 13,890,820 181,858 14,072,678

2022 Owned buildings Leased land with the 
right to use asset

Total buildings

Purchase value 33,375,963 518,930 33,894,893

Value adjustment 19,468,217 294,477 19,762,694

Current value 13,907,747 224,453 14,132,200

2.6.16. Property, plant and equipment excluding right to use fixed assets

2023 Land Buildings Production 
equipment

Other equipment Fixed assets 
under construction

Advances for 
fixed assets

Total

Purchase value        

  1. Opening balance 8,243,681 33,375,963 54,701,798 2,084,972 1,016,223 123,428 99,546,065

  2. Acquisitions 0 966,450 3,587,817 38,542 755,318 892,413 6,240,539

  3. Transfer to use     -934,070 -934,070

  4. Disposals 0 0 -1,948,586 -9,459 -773,102 -2,731,147

  5. Other       0

Closing balance 8,243,681 34,342,413 56,341,029 2,114,055 837,471 242,740 102,121,387

Value adjustment       

  1. Opening balance  19,468,217 38,453,737 1,757,581   59,679,535

  2. Amortisation and depreciation  983,376 3,285,592 135,339   4,404,307

  3. Disposals  0 -1,438,583 -9,286   -1,447,868

Closing balance 0 20,451,593 40,300,747 1,883,634 0 0 62,635,974

Non-depreciable amount        

  1. Opening balance 8,243,681 13,907,747 16,248,061 327,391 1,016,223 123,428 39,866,531

  2. Closing balance 8,243,681 13,890,820 16,040,282 230,421 837,471 242,740 39,485,414
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2.6.16. Property, plant and equipment excluding right to use fixed assets

2022 Land Buildings
Production 
equipment

Other equipment
Fixed assets 

under construction
Advances for 

fixed assets
Total

Purchase value        

  1. Opening balance 8,243,681 33,324,522 50,914,097 2,189,163 118,831 119,948 94,910,241

  2. Acquisitions 0 51,441 4,964,346 122,353 897,392 2,112,902 8,148,435

  3. Transfer to use     0 0

  4. Disposals 0 0 -1,176,646 -226,544 -2,109,422 -3,512,611

  5. Other       0

Closing balance 8,243,681 33,375,963 54,701,798 2,084,972 1,016,223 123,428 99,546,065

Value adjustment        

  1. Opening balance  18,481,013 36,728,777 1,850,170   57,059,960

  2. Amortisation and depreciation  987,203 2,885,371 130,080   4,002,655

  3. Disposals  0 -1,160,411 -222,669   -1,383,080

Closing balance 0 19,468,217 38,453,737 1,757,581 0 0 59,679,535

Non-depreciable amount        

  1. Opening balance 8,243,681 14,843,509 14,185,320 338,993 118,831 119,948 37,850,281

  2. Closing balance 8,243,681 13,907,747 16,248,061 327,391 1,016,223 123,428 39,866,531

Dinos d.o.o. has secured a long-term loan with pledged real estate. 
No tangible assets are acquired with government support. All tangible assets are paid for and 
there is no contractual commitment for them.

No impairment was made at 31/12/2023, nor did we impair tangible and intangible fixed assets 
in 2023.

The Company has fixed assets insured by an insurance company.
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2.6.17. Right to use leased assets

For the purposes of its own operations, the 
company owns various immovable prop-
erty and equipment. The duration of the 
lease of immovable property is usually 10 
years, for equipment, it is 4 to 5 years. The 
payment of the lessee's liabilities for the 
lease of assets is insured by the ownership 
of the lessor over these assets. In addition, 

the Company's right to transfer and sublet 
leased assets is generally limited. In connec-
tion with a number of lease agreements, the 
Company has the option to extend or termi-
nate the lease and the right to pay a variable 
portion of the lease.

The Company has entered into lease agree-
ments for the rental of certain production 
equipment with lease terms of one year or 
less and also leases low-value equipment. 
To recognise liabilities from short-term leas-
es and leases of low-value assets, the com-
pany uses an exception provided by the 
standard.

2.6.17. Right to use leased assets Right to use in EUR

2023   of land Total

Purchase value   

Opening balance on 1 January 2023 518,930 518,930

1. Increases – new leases or changed conditions 30,465 30,465

2. Decreases – interrupted leases or changed conditions  0

3. Disposals  0

4. Other  0

Closing balance 549,395 549,395

Value adjustment   

1. Starting date 1 January 2023 294,477 294,477

2. Amortisation and depreciation 73,060 73,060

3. Disposals  0

Closing balance 367,537 367,537

Non-depreciable amount

1. Opening balance on 1 January 2023 224,453 224,453

2. Closing balance on 31 December 2023 181,858 181,858

2.6.17. Right to use leased assets Right to use 
 of land

Right to use 
equipment

in EUR

2022 Skupaj

Opening balance on 1 January 2022 518,930 355,498 874,428

1. Increases – new leases or changed conditions 0 119,659 119,659

2. Decreases – interrupted leases or changed conditions  -475,158 -475,158

3. Disposals  0 0

4. Other   0

Closing balance 518,930 0 518,930

Value adjustment    

1. Starting date 1 January 2022 223,183 355,463 578,646

2. Amortisation and depreciation 71,294 19,959 91,252

3. Disposals  -375,421 -375,421

Closing balance 294,477 0 294,477

Non-depreciable amount 224,453 0 224,453

1. Opening balance on 1 January 2022 295,747 35 295,782

2. Closing balance on 31 December 2022 224,453 0 224,453
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Financial liabilities – LIABILITIES OF RIGHTS TO USE ASSETS after maturity in EUR

 2024 2025 2026-2028 2029  

2023 Up to 1 year between 
1 to 2 years

between 
2 to 5 years 

over 5 years Total

Right to use land assets 16,705 1,327 4,174 0 22,207

The right to use assets and land – extended 2021 56,734 58,087 49,463 0 164,285

Right to use equipment 0 0 0 0 0

Total financial liabilities 73,439 59,415 53,637 0 186,491

Financial liabilities – LIABILITIES OF RIGHTS TO USE ASSETS po  zapadlosti v EUR

 2023 2024 2025-2027 2028  

2022 Up to 1 year between 
1 to 2 years

between 
2 to 5 years 

over 5 years Skupaj

Right to use land assets 1,267 2,688 4,078 1,425 9,458

The right to use assets and land – extended 2021 55,412 56,734 107,551 0.00 219,697

Right to use equipment 0 0 0 0 0

Total financial liabilities 56,679 59,422 111,629 1,425 229,154

Liabilities arising from the lease of rights to use assets  in EUR

As at 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Long-term liabilities

Liabilities arising from the lease of rights to use assets 113,052 172,476

Short-term liabilities

Liabilities arising from the lease of rights to use assets 73,439 56,679

Total liabilities 186,491 229,154

 in EUR

Amounts recognised in profit or loss, associated with leases: 2023 2022

Depreciation of the rights of use -73,060 -91,252

Interest costs on lease liabilities -5,390 -7,325

costs related to short-term and low-value leases -83,618 -96,662

Operating profit or loss -162,067 -195,239
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2.6.18. Financial investments 
2.6.18. Financial investments 31/12/2023 31/12/2023 in EUR

Stocks and shares in group members Value of the investment Equity of the company Net profit/loss

Long-term investments    

1. INVESTMENT IN DINEKO 7,500 4,439 -255

1. INVESTMENT IN EKODIN 7,500 4,964 3,868

Total long-term investments 15,000 9,403 3,612

Available-for-sale financial investments  31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Long-term investments    

1. Shares and interests for sale  2,506,572 2,506,572

Total long-term investments  2,506,572 2,506,572

Short-term investments    

1. Shares and interests for sale    

2. Bonds for sale    

3. Receivables and other financial assets held for sale   

Total short-term investments  0 0

Total available-for-sale investments  2,506,572 2,506,572

Movement in long-term investments in other companies At cost At fair value through other 
comprehensive income

Total

Opening balance on 1 January 2,506,572  2,506,572

Increases – purchases    

Reductions – sales (deletion from ownership)    

Impairment    

Reversal of impairment    

Revaluation to fair value    

Total long-term investments in other financial investment corporations 31/12/2023 2,506,572  2,506,572

Opening balance on 1 January 2,506,572  2,506,572

Increases – purchases   0

Reductions – sales   0

Impairment   0

Reversal of impairment   0

Revaluation to fair value   0

Total long-term investments in other financial investment corporations 31/12/2022 2,506,572  2,506,572

In accordance with the accounting policies 
adopted, as recorded in section Financial 
investments, under number 2.6.3., the in-
vestments shown in the report are classified 
as “available-for-sale financial investments 
and not held for trading by the Company”, 
valued at cost, as the fair value of these in-
vestments cannot be reliably estimated or 
the published market price is not derived 
from an active market. Based on the publicly 
available information collected, the Com-
pany's Management performed an impair-
ment test on the investment, taking into 
account the impairment criterion set out in 
the following terms: “Due to the impairment, 
long-term investments are revalued if the 
investment is losing value and its estimat-
ed amortised cost is less than the carrying 
amount. The difference identifiedrepresents 
the revaluation financial expense relating to 
the long-term investment.”

As at 31/12/2023, the Company's Manage-
ment performed an internal impairment 
assessment of the value of the investments 
atcost based on the financial data obtained 
from the companies in which we hold in-
vestments and other available information.

The investment in Unior d.d. did not get im-
paired in 2023. The investment is valued at 
cost as trading on the stock exchange is low, 
the market is inactive and does not reflect 
the true value of the investment. The stock 
market movement in the value of shares in 



63Annual Report 2023    Dinos d.o.o. Ljubljana

2023 did not exceed 20% compared to the 
last impairment in 2023. The value of the 
share on the last day of trading in 2023 is 
17% higher than the book value (booked 
EUR 8.60/share, last trading price in 2023 EUR 
10.10/share).

As at 31/12/2023, the Management was not 
able to reliably estimate the fair value of the 
investment in Štore Steel d.o.o. as the price 
of the capital interest is not quoted on a 
stock exchange and the calculation of the 
fair value of the minority interest cannot be 
reliably estimated in the absence of reliable 
information. The investment is valued at cost 
and is assessed annually for indicators of im-
pairment, which are not identified by the 
Management as at 31/12/2023.

Financial investments are classified as avail-
able-for-sale. We have joined the sales con-
sortium for thefinancial investment in Štore 
Steel.

The Company's investments in Group com-
panies are not impaired in 2023.

2.6.19. Financial investments and loans given
2.6.19. Financial investments and loans given    in EUR

Short-term financial investments   31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Short-term financial investments     

1. Short-term financial investments excluding loans     

a) Stocks and shares in the companies within the Group     

b) Shares and stakes in associates     

c) Other shares and stakes     

č) Other short-term investments   0 35,507

Total short-term investments, excluding loans   0 35,507

Loans granted to Group companies Interest rate Maturity 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Long-term loans     

1. CTG loan – 3,000,000.00 6.000% 30/06/2025 3,090,740 0

Total long-term loans   3,090,740 0

     

Issued short-term loans     

1. SRG loan – 2,000,000.00 6.000% 26/06/2024 42,411 0

2. CTG loan – 3,000,000.00 6.000% 30/06/2025 0 3,045,370

Total short-term loans   42,411 3,045,370

Total loans given to Group companies   3,133,151 3,045,370

At the end of 2023, there are no open posi-
tions for forward contracts – derivatives at 
fair value through profit or loss (2022 EUR 35 
thousand) among short-term investments.

A short-term loan of EUR 3 million was 
granted to CTG Group company in 2022 
and extended in 2023 until maturity on 
30/06/2025, and is therefore monitored in 

2023 as a long-term loan. As at 31/12/2023, 
the accrued interest balance is EUR 90 thou-
sand (2022: EUR 45 thousand).

The second short-term loan to the affiliat-
ed company SCHOLZ RECYCLING GmbH, 
granted in 2023, has been fully repaid and 
the accrued interest of EUR 42 thousand as 
at 31/12/2023 has been settled in 2024.
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2.6.20. Inventories  in EUR

Inventories 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

1. Material 11,606,495 10,499,191

2. Unfinished products   

2. Products and merchandise 17,685 98,203

3. Advances for inventories 155,368 295,486

Total inventories 11,779,548 10,892,880

  in EUR

Change in inventories: 2023 2022

– inventory surpluses 1,043,316 984,745

– inventory deficits 255,556 207,312

2.6.20. Inventories

The value of inventories is represented by 
inventories of materials, products, and mer-
chandise and advances made against inven-
tories. 

The carrying amount of inventories at 
31/12/2023 is not greater than their net re-
alisable value, the inventory turnover ratio is 
11.8 in 2023 (14 in 2022). 

All Dinos d.o.o. sites have been subject to 
regular inventories in 2023 and monthly 
check weighings are carried out during the 
year. Inventory differences are due to weath-

er impacts and the work process. In 2023, 
the inventory identified an inventory surplus 
of EUR 1,043,316 (2022: EUR 984,745) and an 
inventory deficit of EUR 255,556 (2022: EUR 
207,312).

The Company does not write down inven-
tories due to changes in quality and value. 
The value of inventories is not pledged by 
the Company as security for liabilities.

The Company has inventories insured with a 
property insurance company.

2.6.21. Operating receivables    

 2.6.21. Operating receivables  in EUR

Operating receivables 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Long-term operating receivables   

1. Long-term operating receivables to others 0.00 0.00

Total long-term operating receivables 0.00 0.00

Short-term trade receivables   

1. Short-term operating receivables due from companies within the group 142,204 1,527

2. Short-term operating receivables from associates 0 0

3. Short-term operating receivables towards customers 28,085,104 23,060,550

4. Interest receivable 211,729 114,606

5. Dividends and profit shares 0 0

6. Receivables from government and other institutions 2,953,981 2,647,103

7. Other advances and collateral 51,544 7,370

8. Other short-term receivables 0 5

Total short-term trade receivables 31,444,562 25,831,160

Total operating receivables 31,444,562 25,831,160

Trade receivables by maturity 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

– not due yet 76.49% 78.28%

– overdue up to 30 days 20.46% 18.74%

– overdue up to 60 days 0.98% 1.94%

- overdue up to 90 days 0.37% 0.55%

– overdue up to 120 days 0.11% 0.15%

– overdue over 120 days 1.59% 0.34%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

Accounts receivable collateralisation 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

1. Secured trade receivables 76.62% 75.12%

2. Unsecured trade receivables 23.38% 24.88%

Total 100.00% 100.00%
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2023 Opening balance Formation Reversal Closing balance

Changes of value adjustments for receivables 01/01/2023   31/12/2023

1. Value adjustment of receivables -232,070 152,209 9,860 -89,721

Total value adjustments to receivables -232,070 152,209 9,860 -89,721

2022 Opening balance Formation Reversal Closing balance

Changes of value adjustments for receivables 01/01/2022   31/12/2022

1. Value adjustment of receivables -240,052 10,078 2,096 -232,070

Total value adjustments to receivables -240,052 10,078 2,096 -232,070

Receivables insured with a credit insurance 
company are insured up to 90%. 

The final balance of the value adjustment 
for receivables at 31/12/2023 is EUR 89,721.23 
(year 2022 EUR 232,070.24). 

For current solvency purposes, loans with an automatic borrowing facility – revolving – are 
taken out with two Slovenian banks for EUR 3,000,000 (2022: EUR 2 million) and for EUR 
5,000,000 (2022: EUR 4 million). As at 31/12/2023, the revolving credit facility was drawn down 
by EUR 4,500,000 (no drawdown as at 31/12/2022).

2.6.22.  Cash and cash equivalents

 2.6.22. Cash and cash equivalents  in EUR

Cash and cash equivalents 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

1. Cash – cash in hand 70,983 75,773

2. Cash on transaction accounts 1,252,553 1,216,649

Total cash 1,323,536 1,292,422

The major items of short-term deferred costs and accrued revenues at 31/12/2023 are accrued 
royalties, membership fees, insurances, and other accrued and prepaid liabilities amounting to 
EUR 14,339.31 (in 2022 EUR 16,818.26), heating energy costs of EUR 1,150.43 (2022 EUR 874.72), 
deferred spare parts costs of EUR 13,478.40 (2022 EUR 7,121.67), and accrued customer debit 
notes of EUR 37,687.04 (2022 EUR 0.00).

2.6.23. Short-term deferred costs and accrued revenue

2.6.23. Short-term deferred costs and accrued revenue  in EUR

 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Short-term deferred costs and accrued revenue 69,526 59,895

Total short-term active accruals 69,526 59,895
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2.6.24. Equity

2.6.24. Equity    in EUR

Capital 31/12/2022 Increase Decrease 31/12/2023

1. Share capital 2,279,668 0 0 2,279,668

2. Capital reserves 9,740,278 0 0 9,740,278

3. Profit reserves 13,530,308 0 0 13,530,308

4. Revaluation surplus 69,202 -68,586 9,868 -9,252

5. Net profit or loss brought forward 21,086,184 6,373,591 0 27,459,775

6. Net profit/loss for the fiscal year 6,363,722 1,678,533 6,363,722 1,678,533

Total capital 53,069,363 7,983,538 6,373,591 54,679,311

    in EUR

Distributable profit   31/12/2023 31/12/2022

1. Net profit or loss for the financial year   1,678,533 6,363,722

2. Net profit or loss brought forward   27,459,775 21,086,184

3. Reduction of profit reserves   0 0

4. Increase of capital reserves (legal, statutory) after the decision of the company management  0 0

5. Increase of other reserves from profit by the decision of the company management  0 0

Total balance sheet profit   29,138,309 27,449,907

     

    in EUR

Capital reserves   31/12/2023 31/12/2022

1. Share premium account   9,740,278 9,740,278

Total capital reserves   9,740,278 9,740,278

The capital consists of 100% of the shares of 
one shareholder. 

Other reserves are taken from the bal-
ance-sheet profit and are created by a reso-
lution of the shareholder. 

The main change in capital in 2023 relates to 
the net profit for the year of EUR 1,678,533 
(2022 EUR 6,363,722). The net profit for the 
year at 31/12/2023 remains unallocated.

Ownership capital structure:

Owner Ownership share

Scholz International Holding GmbH 100.00%

TOTAL 100.00%

Scholz International Holding GmbH is the sole shareholder with 100% of the capital in 
Dinos d.o.o.
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2.6.25. Provisions and long-term accrued costs and deferred revenues

2.6.25. Provisions and long-term accrued costs and deferred revenues  in EUR

 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Provisions for pensions and similar liabilities   

1. Termination benefits on retirement 670,378 566,493

2. Jubilee awards 246,480 215,240

Total provisions for pensions and similar liabilities 916,858 781,733

   

Long-term accruals and deferred income 0 0

Total provisions and long-term accrued costs 
and deferred revenue 916,858 781,733

An actuarial recalculation of the provision for jubilee awards and retirement benefits in accord-
ance with IAS 19 has been carried out by a certified actuary on the status of employees as at 
31/12/2023.

     in EUR

 Opening balance Absorption Formation Reversal Closing balance

Movement in provisions 01/01/2023    31/12/2023

1. Termination benefits on retirement 566,493 87,676 164,185 -27,375 670,378

2. Jubilee awards 215,240 16,395 47,635 0 246,480

Total provisions for pensions and similar liabilities 781,733 104,072 211,821 -27,375 916,858

     in EUR

 Opening balance Absorption Formation Reversal Closing balance

Movement in provisions 01/01/2022    31/12/2022

1. Termination benefits on retirement 573,952 35,388 27,929 0 566,493

2. Jubilee awards 197,857 12,798 30,181 0 215,240

Total provisions for pensions and similar liabilities 771,809 48,186 58,110 0 781,733

Assumptions used in the calculation:

•	 The average salary growth of the 
Company is estimated at 3.50% for 2023 
and 3.50% for 2022, according to the 
actuary's estimate of long-term salary 
growth.

•	 The calculation of the liability for 
severance payments is linked to the 
pensionable service of the individual 
employee and, in addition, to the service 
duration completed with the Company 
at the time of retirement.

•	 The discount rate is estimated at 
3.20% for 2023 and 4.10% for 2022, in 
accordance with the provisions of SAS 10.

•	 The mortality table for the population of 
Slovenia in 2007 is taken into account.

•	 The number of employees covered by 
the accounts at the balance sheet cut-off 
date is 381. 

•	 Total years of service and years of service 
of an individual with the same employer 
at the balance sheet date,

•	 Amount of jubilee awards and 
termination benefits in accordance with 
the relevant collective agreement,

•	 Staff turnover.
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2.6.26. Financial liabilities po  zapadlosti   in EUR

 2024 2025-2027 2028  

2023 between 
1 to 2 years

between 
2 to 5 years 

over 5 years Total

Loans received (short-term and long-term part)     

Bank loans 1,400,000 2,566,667 0 3,966,667

Bank revolving loans 4,500,000 0 0 4,500,000

Liabilities from financial leases     

Financial lease liabilities 833,968 1,850,387 128,534 2,812,889

Other financial liabilities     

Derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 0

Total financial liabilities 6,733,968 4,417,053 128,534 11,279,555

 2023 2024-2026 2027  

2022 between 
1 to 2 years

between 
2 to 5 years 

over 5 years Total

Loans received (short-term and long-term part)     

Bank loans 1,400,000 3,966,667 0 5,366,667

Bank revolving loans 5,100,000   5,100,000

Liabilities from financial leases     

Financial lease liabilities 762,075 1,177,478 120,518 2,060,071

Other financial liabilities     

Derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 52,938 0 0 0

Total financial liabilities 7,315,013 5,144,145 120,518 12,526,738

2.6.26. Financial liabilities

Long-term loans received at 31/12/2023 are 
obtained from banks in Slovenia.

The long-term loan is secured by real estate.
The annual interest rate on the long-term 
loan we are financing is 1.30%, plus three-
month EURIBOR deposit interest rate.

The average annual interest rate on revolv-
ing loans is 1.15%, for one of the banks the 
interest rate is nominal and for the other it 
is increased by the one-month EURIBOR de-
posit interest rate. They are secured by bills 
of exchange and real estate. 

Finance leases are secured by bills of ex-
change and bear an average annual interest 
rate of 1.85% plus three- or six-month EURI-
BOR deposit interest rate.

Other financial commitments in 2022 in-
clude commitments at the last day of the 
year. For derivatives at fair value through 
profit or loss used tohedge the cost of ma-
terials, there were no open transactions at 
the end of 2023 and therefore no liabilities 
are reported.
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2.6.27. Operating liabilities

2.6.27.  EUR

Operating liabilities 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Short-term trade liabilities   

1. Short-term operating liabilities to group companies 22,261 17,322

2. Short-term operating liabilities to associates 0 0

3. Short-term operating liabilities to suppliers 19,875,512 18,604,581

4. Interests 25,983 15,266

5. Payables to the state and state institutions 386,255 351,564

6. Liabilities to employees 601,883 568,015

7. Short-term trade payables on advances 10,390 12,500

8. Other short-term liabilities 14,277 11,356

Total short-term trade liabilities 20,936,561 19,580,604

Total operating liabilities 20,936,561 19,580,604

Supplier payables by maturity 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

– not due yet 79.04% 86.70%

– overdue up to 30 days 20.68% 13.22%

– overdue up to 60 days 0.16% 0.02%

– overdue up to 90 days 0.00% 0.00%

– overdue up to 120 days 0.01% 0.01%

– overdue over 120 days 0.11% 0.05%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

The most important item among trade payables is the payable to suppliers, which increased 
by 7% in compared to 2022. The biggest factor behind the increase in payables to suppliers is 
the 8% increase in end-of-year inventories compared to the end of the previous year. 
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2.6.28. Short-term accrued costs and deferred revenues

2.6.28. Short-term accrued costs and deferred revenue  in EUR

 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

1. Untaken leave 276,170 270,415

2. Short-term accrued costs and deferred revenue 1,810,142 2,593,136

Total short-term accrued costs and deferred revenue 2,086,313 2,863,551

2023 Opening 
balance 

Formation Reversal Closing 
balance

Changes in accrued revenue and deferred costs 01/01/2023   31/12/2023

1. Pre-calculated costs -1,020,633 -2,657,168 3,320,052 -357,748

2. Accrued labour costs -897,258 -29,393 0 -926,651

3. Accrued unused annual leave from 
the previous year -270,415 -254,638 248,883 -276,170

4. Deferred income for liabilities related 
to contracts with customers -622,307 -3,029,757 3,126,321 -525,743

5. IFI lease for price hedging not yet expired -52,938 0 52,938 0

Total value adjustments to receivables -2,863,551 -5,970,955 6,748,193 -2,086,313

2022 Opening 
balance 

Formation Reversal Closing 
balance

Changes in accrued revenue and deferred costs 01/01/2022   31/12/2022

1. Pre-calculated costs -549,533 -4,331,963 3,860,863 -1,020,633

2. Accrued labour costs -824,682 -709,220 636,644 -897,258

3. Accrued unused annual leave from 
the previous year -180,964 -420,796 331,344 -270,415

4. Deferred income for liabilities related 
to contracts with customers -698,094 -3,111,574 3,187,360 -622,307

5. IFI lease for price hedging not yet expired 0 -52,938 0 -52,938

Total value adjustments to receivables -2,253,272 -8,626,491 8,016,212 -2,863,551

The most significant short-term accrued 
costs and deferred revenue at 31/12/2023 
are accrued expenses of EUR 357,748 (2022 
EUR 1,020,633), accrued labour costs of EUR 
926,651 (2022 EUR 897,258), accrued unused 
annual leave of the previous year of EUR 
276,170 (2022 EUR 270,415), and deferred 

income for liabilities related to contracts 
with customers of EUR 525,743 (2022 EUR 
622,307). The liability accrued in 2022 for 
the unexpired year-end transactions for the 
lease of financial instruments for price hedg-
ing of EUR 52,938 was reversed in 2023.
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2.6.29. Transactions with related companies  

2.6.29. Transactions with related companies  in EUR

Sales and procurement 2023 2022

Sales to Group companies:   

1. CHIHO-TIANDE (HK) Ltd 180,000 180,000

2. SCHOLZ RECYCLING GmbH 888,289 648,783

3. SCHROTT UND METALLHANDEL M. KATTSCH 964,887 267,223

4. SCHROTT-WALTNER Ges.m.b.H. 165,965 315,301

5. SRW METALFLOAT GmbH 74,151 946,456

6. EKODIN D.O.O. 0 105

Total sales to Group companies 2,273,291 2,357,868

Purchases from Group companies   

1. FRITZ KUTTIN GmbH 0 125,388

2. SCHOLZ MANAGEMENT SERVICE GmbH 60,000 60,000

3. SCHROTT UND METALLHANDEL M. KATTSCH 0 238,647

4. SCHOLZ RECYCLING GmbH 95,090 581,231

5. SCHROTT-WALTNER Ges.m.b.H. 103,798 327,013

6. SRW METALFLOAT GmbH 54,791 321,408

7. SCHOLZ RECYCLING KFT. 190,194 0

8. KOVOŠROT GROUP CZ s.r.o. 0 8,212

9. REMATHOLDING Co. S.r.L. 0 17,408

10. SCHOLZ ROHSTOFFHANDEL GmbH 85,711 0

Total purchases from Group companies 589,584 1,679,308

  in EUR

Receivables and payables 2023 2022

Trade receivables due from Group companies   

1. CHIHO-TIANDE (HK) Ltd 90,740 45,370

2. SCHOLZ RECYCLING GmbH 184,615 1,526

Total receivables due from Group companies 275,355 46,896

Liabilities to group companies   

1. SCHOLZ RECYCLING GmbH 0.00 17,322

1. SCHOLZ RECYCLING KFT. 22,261 0

Total liabilities to Group companies 22,261 17,322

Loans and receivables  in EUR

   

Loans from Group companies 2023 2022

1. CHIHO-TIANDE (HK) Ltd 3,000,000 3,000,000

2. SCHOLZ RECYCLING GmbH 0 0

Total loans to group companies 3,000,000 3,000,000

The company received appropriate refunds for all transactions which have been conducted 
with companies in the group, and was not deprived on the basis of these transactions. The 
Company has not been directed by its parent companies to enter into any legal transactions 
for which it has been prejudiced and has not been compensated for any such prejudice. 
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2.6.30. Off-balance-sheet liabilities

2.6.30. Off-balance-sheet liabilities  in EUR

2023 2022

Liens on real estate 7,466,667 11,366,667

Guarantees granted 6,921,425 4,103,136

Building rights 1,003 1,003

Total 14,389,095 15,470,806

2.6.31. Events after the balance sheet date

We are operating according to plan. Pric-
es on the steel scrap market have shown a 
renewed upward trend. After price volatility 
in 2023, the trend stabilised in Q2 2024, with 
copper reaching record highs, driven by ex-
pected spending on electrification and the 
green transition, along with stock market 
speculation.Prices in other programmes re-
main stable and have not changed signifi-
cantly since the end of last year.

We have extended and increased a revolv-
ing credit facility. 

The economy is following the macro eco-
nomic picture, with inflation moderating, 
facing staff shortages and pressure for high-
er wages.

We believe that no events have occurred 
after the balance sheet date which could im-
pact the financial statements and as a result 
of which additional procedures would have 
to be performed to determine whether 
those events were accurately presented in 
these financial statements.
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3.	 Independent 
Auditor’s Report 
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This is a translation of the original report in Slovene language 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT  
To the Owners of DINOS d.o.o. 
 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of DINOS d.o.o. (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at 
31 December 2023, the income statement, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including 
material accounting policy information.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the DINOS d.o.o. as at 31 December 2023 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Slovenian Accounting Standards. 

 
Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under 
those rules are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board of 
Accountants’ (IESBA) International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International 
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Slovenia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the IESBA Code.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 
Other information  

Other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and 
auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. In addition, we assess whether 
the other information has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with applicable law or regulation, 
in particular, whether the other information complies with law or regulation in terms of formal requirements and 
procedure for preparing the other information in the context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with 
these requirements could influence judgments made on the basis of the other information. 

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that: 

• The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the financial statements is, in all 
material respects, consistent with the financial statements; and  

• The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation. 

 

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company obtained in 
the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement. Based on the procedures we have 
performed on the other information obtained, we have not identified any material misstatement. 

 
Responsibilities of management for the financial statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
Slovenian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with audit rules, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;  

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control;  

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management;  

• conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation;  

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
 

 
Ljubljana, 19.7.2024 

 

 

 

 
 Simon Podvinski Špela Stopar Koblič     
 Partner, certified auditor  Certified Auditor 
   Ernst & Young d.o.o. 
 Dunajska 111, Ljubljana 
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